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EVERYTHING WE DO IS
DRIVEN BY OUR PURPOSE

Our purpose is
to consistently
deliver value
and reward our
stakeholders
by making a

difference to our
colleagues, our
customers and
suppliers, and
our communities.




DIPLOMA AT A GLANCE

Diploma PLC is an international group distributing specialised
products and services to a wide range of end segments in our
three Sectors of Controls, Seals and Life Sciences.

We are a well-diversified and resilient business and cur
decentralised model means our businesses are customer-
oriented, accountable and empowered to deliver.

OQUR SECTORS (REVENUE}*

43% LS

10% Conada

20% UK

17% CEurope

10% Australia/other




Our businesses design their individual value-added business models to closely meet the
requirements of their customers, offering a blend of high-quality customer service, deep
technical expertise and innovative solutions. Local cultures are created through our decentralised
management structure but we recognise a set of values that exist throughout the Group and
unite us as Diploma.

MBIAIBAD

VALUE-ADD IS AT THE WE HAVE A DECENTRALISED BUSINESS MODEL
HEART OF WHAT WE DO  WITH SHARED AND ALIGNED VALUES

Technical expertise ~ Determined to get better
¢ every day

yoday o1Bajbiig

Service-led propositions Accountability Striving for high standards

Innovative solutions 2 Doing the right thing

TRACK RECORD OF COMPOUNDING GROWTH
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15-year EPS CAGR:15%
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HIGHLIGHTS

CEOLNEGED 20 SEPEMEBER FQ27

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR OUR STAKEHOLDERS

Organic growth Free cash flow conversion' Qur Colleagues
We have worked hard to retain

great talent by engaging
O/ O/ colleagues across the Group, Our
Engagement index is testament
O O to our businesses’ efforts.

Meedel o Q05

'Reporteidi;evérhue' Vg‘;;owth’ . Net debt/EBITDA ~ Our Customers
Resparsive customer service is

ane of the key ways that our
O businesses deliver value, we are
/ x proud that they are recognised
O o by their customers.
0%

Madek =2 Tx

Adjusted operating mcrgm ROATCE' Our Supphers _
During the year, our businesses

have engaged their key suppliers
C)/ C)/ meaningfully on human rights,
lobour lows and the environment
® O O through our Supplier Code,

Modgeal "/ e Model: High tears

E:Ijua;d EPS éréﬁh“_. Dividend cover’ Our Communities
As a decentralised Group,

we want to support the local
O communities and causes that
/ X matter most to our businesses.
O ® We will continue to match our

vl coatle <isgit businesses’ fundraising in FY23.

FY 2022 _Fy2021 % change

I Jz FAm 7P
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Colleagas Tngayemiert index

“Since beginning a business
relationship with Hercules OEM
in 2003, we have seen a supplier
relationship grow into ¢ true
partnership. Over the years the level
of service has continued to excel”

Nepture, o Hercules SEM custormer

o/8

Key suppliers idertificd

/9%

Increase in donations 1o cbarity

Diplerra PLC Annual Repcrt 2027

FOR OU
STAKEHOLDERS

KEY ELEMENTS OF OUR

LONG-TERM VALUE
CREATICN STORY

Qur business model

Our strategy

Delivering value responsibly
Sector reviews

Governance

0 

1loday s1bajong MIIAIBA
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WHAT WE DO

.
E.
o

DIFFERENTIATED VALUE-
ADDED SOLUTIONS

Our value-add distribution model
underpins everything we do and
is the foundation of the Group's
success. We supply products

and services critical to customer
needs. Qur service component
builds ioyalty and resilience,
pricing power and margins,

D6 iploma PO Aroasl Regar 70
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WHAT WE DO

SUSTAINABLE ORGANIC
GROWTH STRATEGY

Organic growth is our number
one pricrity. All of our businesses
have fartastic opportunities.
We are focused on business
reverue diversification to drive
organic growth, build scale and
increase resilience. Operating

in fragrmented markets, we also
seek to make complementary
acquisitions 1o accelerate
organic growtn.
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SCALING OUR VAL
ADDED MODEL

o,
As our businesses grow afftif g
scale, they need to evolve théir
operating mode! to continue to
deliver their value-add customer
proposition. Alongside this, we are
quietly evolving the structures,
capability and culture of our
decentralised Group to support
the businesses on their journey
o scole.

10 Oiploma PIEC Annual Report 2022
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WHAT WE DO

DELIVERING VALUE
RESPONSIBLY

Delivering Value Responsibly,
our E5G framework, puts
environmental and social
impact at the forefront of our
strategy and culture, We are
focused on the key areas in
which we con mcke a difference
to our colleagues, customers
and suppliers, communities,
anlhareholders.
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL

DRIVEN BY OUR VALUE-ADDED BUSINESSES
OUR PURPOSE

Our businesses deliver value-added services

and solutions to a wide range of customers and
end segments. Our value-add component creates
customer loyalty and share of wallet; reputation
and market share growth; and pricing power

and margin.

" Responsive customer service

Our purpose

is to consistently
deliver value
and reward our
stakeholders by

making a difference
to our colleagues,
our customers and
suppliers, and our
communities.

© ‘Brilliant leadership, strong
uiture and empowered tearns

~



WE DELIVER
FOR OUR
STAKEHOLDERS

THE GROUP

o]

As a customer-service organisation, our
decentralised approach is central to our success.
The Group has an important role to play in
supporting our businesses.

MBIAIAA

Build Diplorna idendily
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CHAIR'S STATEMENT

Our businesses have strong cultures, but

share the same inherent values - they are

accountable, entrepreneurial and empowered  Boardchanges
to deliver for their customers. L e
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T 7 - RRG Fluid Power
Group (R&G) epresents astep chunge

for Seals ~ == o oy o n T

ot ot exelting
Adheswes busmess Ilne in ControES’

- - mCrementcl
product odjocencyln:tratlveS' e
Iy R

Focused portfollo development

I R L R E

O

MBIALIA

Hoday 21Baipayg

[
[+]
S
b4
o
=+
o
-
o
i
o
<
[
=
2
a
3
[2]
L]

SIUBISLNLS |DIPUDULY

WI04U| 19430




CEO's REVIEW

CONTINUED
== UNUYED
LJR Efectronics (Contro!s): "
- AT S I ey e
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Scaling oy value-added Businesses
and the Group
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Scaling the Group

Increasing resilience underpins our
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Managerment Team (SMT) -x- =
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Carbon emissions flat despite 15%
organic revenue growth .. 7:




STRATEGY

Building high-quality, scalable businesses
for sustainable organic growth

Compounding
1. Revenue diversification Financial
to drive organic growth Model

| Organic
| growth

2. fargéted ucquis_i'f:i'o'n:sio_ . A
‘ accelerate organic gl‘owth B | Revenue

| growth

Operating
. Margin \
3. Scale our businesses to execute

|
value-added customer proposition S

[of-11,}
conversion

A
ROATCE |
|

5. Delivering Value Responsibly



1. Revenue diversification to drive
organic growth

Our sustainable growth strategy is focused on revenuc
diversification to drive organic revenue growth, build scale and
increase resilience. Operating in a broad range of markets, all
of our businesses have fantastic opportunities. Our strategy is
focused on growing, diversifying and scaling in three ways:

MBIAIBAQ
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Positioning behind Geographic Product range
high-growth end penetration of core extension to expand
segments developed markets addressable markets B
All of our businesses have We are relatively We extend our product §
opportunities to tap into underpenetrated in our ranges incrementally s
high growth end segments, core developed markets within our businesses @
many of which also have of North America, Europe and at portfolio level. 3
a positive impact on the and Australia where there §
environment or society. is significant potential to S

increase market share.

STRONG ORGANIC GROWTH TRACK RECORD:
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STRATEGY
CONTINUJED

2. Targeted acquisitions to accelerate
organic growth

Focused portfolio development is key to the sustainabiiity of our
growth strategy. As we grow, it is important that we focus on the
key, scalable business lines that represent cur model and which
we are the right owners to grow and scale.

O 02 03

Acquisitions to A disciplined Success factors
accelerate organic approach
growth

T LR T N Target attributes
T DRI A R TR B I e 1
T A LT LR Tt Ll aty e e
(AR PN T
crtel v

P AU R R How we add value

"Our approach to acquisitions Histotic M&A spend (£m)
has become more structured
and strategic. This has
expanded our acquisition
pipeline, enabling us to take

462.2

‘ 186.4
advantage of a busy market
whilst also maintaining our
strong financial discipline.”

783
Steve Sargeant, . ol w7 .
- 16.5 4.9

Corporate Development o e R o o T e

Director

2012 2013 2014 2015 2018 2017 2ne 209 2020 2021 2022



CASE S5TUDY

Windy City Wire:
accelerating organic growth for the
Group

Windy City Wire is a leading value-added distributor of
premium quality low voltage wire and cable.

Acquired in October 2020 for £348m, the business
represented a material strategic step forward, accelerating
organic growth for the Group as a whole. Importantly,
Windy City Wire diversified Controls inte the large,
attractive US industrials market and significantly increased
the Group's exposure to high growth end segments.
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ROATCE Operating profit {$m)
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STRATEGY
CONTINUED

STRATEGY IN ACTION:  — ~— 7 "7 "7
ACQUISITIONS ACCELERATING ORGANIC GROWTH

Acquisition of Accuscience in Ireland: Acquisition of LIR Electronics in the US:
positioning behind high growth end segments penetrating core developed economies and product
and penetrating core developed economies. range expansion to expand addressable markets.

L -
ACCUSCIENCE oy L_JR -
e
- SORTEROOANE D LAl T

Portfolio fit:

S L
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CASE STUDY

Acquisition of R&G Fluid Power Group in
the UK: penetrating core developed
economies and product range extension

In April, we acquired R&G Fluid Power Group (RAG), a high-
quality aftermarket distribution business for our Seals Sector
in the UK, for ca. £100m.

R&G is a value-added distributor of a diverse range of industrial,
hydraulic and pneurnatic products (including seals and
gaskets). [ts value-added proposition is based on responsive
customer service, technical advice, breadth of stock and
product customisation. Over time, the management team has
built a platform with extensive reach across the UK, including
through consolidating a number of regional distributors to
extend geographic and product reach.

Characteristics:
el saaed aftenrinrk=t distributon

slod Focsor ezt rango

Value drivers:

MBIAIBAD
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STRATEGY
CONTINUEDR

3. Scale our businesses to execute
value-added customer proposition

Qur service component builds loyalty and resilience, pricing
power and margins. As our businesses grow, they evolve their
operating models to continue to deliver their value-add
proposition at scale ~ how a £10m revenue business delivers for
its customers is very different to a £100m revenue business.

We have created a framework for our businesses to plot their
journey to scale, including defining the right target operating
model of the future, developing the Core Competencies that
underpin it and the capability that will deliver it.

Evolve target operating model

Scaling our
value-added
businesses Core Competencies Capabilities

Core Cbmpetenciés

T ST

[PREEEAPIRY

e LT TR L T

Supply Chain Operational Commercial Route to
Management Excelience Value-Add Discipline Market




4, Evolve the Group to support
decentralised delivery

MBIAIBAQ

Our value-add distribution model underpins everything we do
and is the foundation of the Group’s success.

1oday 21Bayniag
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Scaling
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STRATEGY
CONTINUED

STRATEGY IN ACTION:
SCALING OUR VALUE-ADDED BUSINESSES AND THE GROUP

Australian Life Sciences: building a scalable Chicago June 2022: sharing best practice
platform for growth and building leadership networks




3

Diplema PLC Annual Report

CASE STUDY

Talent

“Investing in talent is critical to the
sustainability of our growth”

Jill Tennant
Group HR Director
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STRATEGY

COMNTINGED

5. Delivering value responsibly

Our DVR programme is built on five,
material focus areas and positioning
ourselves for commercial growth with
a positive impact on society and the
environment. Embracing DVR is key
to executing our strategy, fulfilling our
purpose and scaling and managing
our business sustainably.

-
2740
AIESL
RIS ALY
A
e
Fo
AN

DIVERSITY, EQUITY
& INCLUSION

COLLEAGUE
ENGAGEMENT

HEALTH & SAFETY DELIVERING
VALUE RESPONSIBLY

32 Diplema PLC Annucl Report 2022
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O

By aligning our businesses with our five
focus areas and positioning ourselves for
commercial growth with a positive impact
on society and the environment, we can
play a meaningful role in building a more
sustainable world.

MIIAIIA

Delivering for our People Delivering for the Environment  Delivering a Positive Impact
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Read about our performance in each of our focus areas Q

+

on pages 36-47. T
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Qur businesses have established DVR committees and Read more about our DVR metrics and targets on 2
appointed persons responsible for performance and page 53. "a".
3

progress against targets.

Read about our DVR governance, responsible business
practices, and policies and procadures on pages 50-57.




DELIVERING

DIPLOMA DELIVERS FOR N
OUR COLLEAGUES

LN
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Our colleagues are the foundation of our
business. They deliver value-add to our

customers, execute against our strategy
and are essential to our ongoing success.

Our decentralised Graup employs ca. 3,000
celleagues across mltiple businesses,
geographiss ang communitizs, This year, we
welcormed co. 500 new ceolleag.es thraugh
acguisiiors, The safely, wellbeing and
ergagernent of those collzagues is our
primary concern and central to how we
deliver value.

Developing, aturacting anc retaining taksrt
inan cquitable and irclusive ervironrmert
will support sur lourney U scals, anad is an
impertort differentiotor in o challenging
labosr mark=st. Protecting our agile and
slabil= r'un T8 15 i IOV T l BryArs

of our colleagues are proud to work for
their business

Brilliant leadership

Our decertralised model means that cur
Sen‘or Leadersnip Team (SL1) plays akey
rols i progressing the culture and stratesgy
of the Growp, as well as the perfarmaonce
2f thair businesses and Sectors, Our 56T -
comprised of our Executive tea, the
Managing Directors of our businesses ond
key Group roles - has dermonstratacd brillicm
leadership during FY22, continuirg 1o look
after and support our calleagues, serve our
cJstorners and show great agility and
resifience despile geopolitical and economic
UNCertainties.

35 Diplema PLC Annual Repart 2022

Mental heaith ond wellbeing

W fthe potenticl rpact that
caarhing ervvirormiznts and proctices have
or owr colleag During the Wi
contirued to hald wellbeing ord resilience
workshops with busie s and proviced
resources 10 mark Worlzs b
whick was celetra

iz are mindiul ¢

the Grep.

We at \sn soately

f'_nrtu« . onc 9 polit Aability, the
o5t of living ¢ at ey further
Eact our 2o g6 wesilbeing and
Tnertal kealth, We b ove warkeso

FEGSS LIS B ~1H 4 | u\\vuqu

In June this year, we brought together

members of the SLT in Chicago to
celebrate their hard work and discuss
our strategy. This was the SLT's first
time meeting in person since the
pandemic and a key opportunity to
strengthen networks, build our culture
and integrate new senior leaders

according 15 cur & e Lurvey
istance Lo aitered Hw;,-q-_:ﬁ' w
il stance Prograrnme, wikick
covere 2l ewistirq :

Forthera

bLrirennes wrere © ;Ho Tgues bave
o bersavernaet or tra
Bunldmg engaging and fulfilling careers
cortinee to evelve aur culture
sepoort collzague engagemeanrt aoros
Graup. We acquire new business
vear and give careful consideration e how
we cnboord coliecgues that join us through
aCQuISITGN.

Group intermnal communication s a pos
toslforus  our CEO updates our collcagues
direcﬂy through gquarterly vic rel
information is shamd acrass busines and
Sectors throegh our internal newsletien This
yeor we introduced a learning managernent
systermn, which iz currently beirg rolled out
across the Group

Cuovelopnient of Lalent supports our
strategy, deepens ergogerment and s
important ot every level of our bualress.
Many of our collecgues underr N-the-job
training, whether through apprenticeships
cr exterral certification. Throagh ow DVR
programme, we have stort develop
netwaorks that facilitots kne sharing
across certain functions such as Health &
Safety, Supply Chain Mancgament, and HE.

ol Health Doy,

ypoday 2163roang




DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

Engaging our Colleagues

Engaged colleagues perform better. Our

e igny engoe 2 colleagues have great technical expertise
and in-depth knowledge of their products
2022 Highlights and markets. In a challenging labour market,

- B86% response rote

T 70% cotemmue engagement indes engagement helps us to hold onto that
- 70% of Group colleagues are talent, knowledge and expertise.

active on our new fearning
rmanagement system

86%

response rate

/9%

engagement index

Kel
Engagement Index
{an externally benchimarked score

ng 2022
from our annual engagement survey) s

Ce T

Target . . : A s
Maintoin an engogement index BRI Ii- L —n
of 70%+

Ongoing Focus
- Build out our learning management
system
- Continued focus on wellbeing
and mental heaith
- HR network to support best
practice Py i
- Continued leadership development It's really important to us that
we continue to prioritise and
engage our colleagues across
the Group. Earlier this year we
held our second engagerment
survey. The engagement index
was 79% with over 2000

colleagues taking part.”

Jill Tennant,
Group HR Director



S S S LIt e st CASE STUDY

L ~-—-  MSeals UK Employee
: - "7 Working Group

RTINSO - &

O Leadership style E

o

o+ 75% o :
all of our businesses achieved an 2022 75
2021 73

engagement index within a range
of 75-85%

Learning and development

QOO 70% . L T
L B "

“1 like that | can act on behalf

of our colleagues believe thq.::t their Wellbeing of my Co"qu ues to voice their
::?;';;;fg:';:ﬁi:; according to our 79% R concerns or issues. | also like
that we develop a plan or
2022 79 response to each issue right
2021 78 there in the meeting so it gets
O sorted straightaway. It's a
/ great way to communicate as
O ATTTALT e i ettt e e all the branches of the business
of our colleagues believe that their : - ; e K . S are there together C-I‘t the
manager empowers them, according P : e meeting - whether it's a
to our engagement survey R AL LT TN 2 ols finance issue, a management

issue, or a warehouse issue.”

Sati Sing,

Warehouse Operative and
member of the Employee
Working Group at M Seals UK



DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

Ensuring Health & Safety

Keeping our colleagues healthy, safe and
well is a prerequisite to doing business.
We have a duty of care to any person who
is working remotely, working at, or visiting

Ouir vision is that no one is harmed
at work

2022 Highlights

- Continuing to build a proactive
Health & Safety culture

-~ More robust reporting

~ Reduced severity rate

~ Improvernent in potential
hazard reporting

~ Improved governonce at business
and Sector level

10.6

LTl rate

44,

reduction in severity rate

KPI

Lost time incident (LT!) Rate
(number of lost time incidents per
1,000 employees)

FY23 Target
5% year-on-year reduction in LTI rate

Ongoing Focus

- Build positive mental health
and wellbeing

- Continuous improvernent and focus
on Health & Safety culture

- Ensure process in ploce to reduce
risks identified by potential hazard
reporting

a Diploma business.

Action during 2022

L N S R E

86%

of colleagues feel thot Health &
Safety is taken seriously in their
business, according to our Colleague
Engagement Survey




CASE STUDY
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DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

Promoting Diversity, Equity & Inclusion

QOur vision is to build g diverse
workforce, where all of our colleagues
feel able to bring their full selves 1o
work and fuifil their potential.

2022 Highlights

~ New Group Diversity, Equity
& Inclusion Policy

~ Unconscious bias workshops

Training for Senior Leadership

Tearmn on inclusive leadership

Ethnicity reporting

27%

of the Senior Management Tearn
are women

f

i

KPI
% of wormen on the Senior
Management Team

FY30 Target
Women represent 40%+ of Senior
Management Team

Ongoing Focus

- Succession planning

— Implernenting the Diversity, Equity
and Inclusion Policy across the Group

- Further learning and knowledge
sharing

We remain committed to better
representation across our Group and
businesses, particularly in management
and leadership positions.

Gender diversity (os ot 30 September)

Mo+ Female Tota

RS Ethnic 137 T
ranonty  minerity [N Totn
SRR 0 .
o/ o S T
O N N R

of external hires into the
Sentor Management Team during the
year were wornen

% of women on SMT

2022 27%
2021 24%



Diversity of our Senior Management Team

Gender diversity Ethnic diversity
Women 27% Ethnic minority  10%

Prefer pot te say  15%

Gender diversity across the Group

Board All employees

Women 43% Women 31%

CASE 5TUDY ~~
International
Women'’s Day
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Irternational Wormen's day was
celebrated by businesses across the Group
on &th March 2022.

Businesses brought their teams together

ot lunches, discussion groups and through
fundraising events tc discuss bias and the
challenges faced by wormen in the workplace.

All colleagues were also given the
opportunity to attend a #BreakTheBias
workshop, which highlighted examples of
unconscicus bias and the role that we can
all play in tackling it at work.



DELIVERING vALUZ RESPONSIBLY
. TINUED

DIPLOMA DELIVERS FOR
THE ENVIRONMENT




We are a Group whose businesses, supply
chain and end users stretch across the globe.
As a distributor, our operational emissions are
relatively modest, and the vast majority of
our emissions will sit in Scope 3.

Caleulation of cur Scope 3 emissions is a
complicoted undertaking in o decentralised
Group, such as curs, W ore working o do
*suboritiing o net zere target
erce-Based lagets Initiative (SBTT)
during FY23

Thee Cirrote oris's is argent ane global, we
recognise the impact of our wider footprint
and the narrs el f opportunity
tamake o live contributionr in tackling
- Beyond tha maoral ebligation that
a 5o see the cortribution to the
fong ternovalue creation and groseth of oar
Lo I s,

4% Diplema PLC Annuat Report 2022

Our colleagues are increasingly sassionate
about climats change ard expact the Group
Lo drive proaress and swpport their initatives,
There is clsc the opportunity Lo celiver

value 10 our custormers by oftering more
sustoincble products and solutions, tuilding
o krowledie and expertise, and warking
o be a more carbon off t busiess that
can support their net zerc goals.

grawth with a positive impact on saciety
anc the ervironment

1ioday 016330135




BELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINWED

Sustainable Supply Chain Management

Qur vision is for all of our key suppliers
to be compliant with our Supplier Code.

2022 Highlights

- Active engogement with our
suppliers on the environment

- Key suppliers identified and the
process has started to align with
our Supplier Code

59%

of our identified key suppliers are
aligned with our Supplier Code

KP
% of identified key suppliers aligned
with Suppfier Code

FY3Q Target
80% of key suppliers are aligned with
our Supplier Code

Ongoing Focus

- Continue 10 ensure alignment of
key suppliers with Supplier Code

- Align our Supply Chain Policy and
processes with our net zero targets

- Build our understanding of supplier
emissions

Management of our supply chain is key

to our broader social and environmental
impact as a Group, and a key part of our
strategy and commercial proposition. Our
focus is to work with our suppliers to tackle
climate change and reduce our own impact
through more sustainable packaging,
logistics and products.

Perceﬁtqrgé;of identified key;uppti-ers LT R T SR
aligned with our Supplier Code o I T R R

Key suppliers aligned
with Supplier Code 59%




Tackling Emissions and Waste

To be net zere across our operations
by 2040 and net zero across our value
chain by 2050 at the latest.

2022 Highlights

- Emissions flat, excluding the impact
of new acquisitions during the year,
despite strong organic growth

- Waste measured for the first time

- Business-driven initiatives

Total Scope 1 and 2 emissions

Tonnes CO,e

Emissions KPI

% reduction of Scope 1and 2
ernissions (tonnes CO.e) against FY22
baseline (10,615 tonnes CO.e)

Waste KPI
% of totol waste to landfil!

FY30 Emissions Target
50% reduction of Scope
1 & 2 emissions on FY22 baseline

FY30 Waste Target
Less than 15% waste to landfill

Ongoing Focus

- Set SBTi net zero target

- Build internal knowledge of
Scopes1,2&3

- Divert waste from landfill

- Set out a clear rocdmap to
our 2030 targets

We are committed to net zero emissions
across our value chain by 2050 at the latest.
We have set an interim 50% reduction target
for our own operations by FY30. We are
currently calculating our Scope 3 and wiill
submit our net zero targets for verification
by the SBTi in FY23.
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FY22 FY21 Fyv2p
R S S 3256 1z
= - - - 7,359 i
g “ 10,615 S <

Purchased electricity kWh

14,033,971

Tonnes CO.e per £1m revenue

10.5

2022 10.5 2022 14,033,971
202 12.5 202 ERTALYS
2020 8.0 2020 7,762,447

Gross emissions

10,615

2022 10,615
2021 2,825
2020 4,331



DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

CASE STUDY

Packaging

Packaging initiatives are being put in place
across the Group. For many businesses, the
focus has been on creating a more circular
packaging system.

Some businesses bove invested in shredding
rmachines in order to reuse incoming
cardboard packaging as packing material
tor outgoing orders. Other businesses have
focused on removing non-recyclatite
elernents from their pockoging by replacing
plastic tape with paper tape - remaoving
more than a tonne of plastic for their
customers. Another scherme has completely
remaved branding from all packaging. By
working closely with our suppliers to have
products delivered in plain, cardboard
boxes, product packaging can be reused by
our businesses and customers.

All of these initiatives support our ambition
to reduce our waste-to-landfill and overall
waste. It also supports cur custorners in
achieving their own net zerc and waste
reduction inftiatives.



CASE STUDY

Facility upgrades

During FY22, our European Life Sciences business,
Simonsen & Weel, moved into a new location that
benefits from more efficient heating and cooling,
solar panels, state-of-the-art insulation and electric
vehicle charging. The business also decided to
improve biodiversity in the surrounding area by
sowing wildflower meadows on its surrounding land.

P e

yoday 216230135 B
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DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

DELIVERS
IMPACT

48 Diplomao PLC Annual Report 2022




Our businesses deliver positive impact
through products and services that benefit
our society or environment. Growth initiatives
in these areas offer exciting commercial
opportunities and support our purpose.

Positive impact revenue is generGted across
all businesses from the sole of products
services and saluatiors that benefit o
soiely or ervironment ard sopport the
trarsition to O reore sustainatile tuture.
Growthinitiatives in these areas offer a key
opportunity to positively impact su
stokehicldeors,

Thimem are buse spaartanitis

inthe scale of trans ormr m

create g mare soustainatle,

ECONCITYY, S0 the ad eshies e s
et vehice assernbily or the seas sal
o reresobile energy generalicn

Dusirs Q3D Ly produt ?sthut

ort healthy I
swch as the h\qh\v tr\mdﬁd silicone oo
cpplisa by our Controls Sectaor, that s
in dafibrilatars and BECG electrodes.

49 Diploma PLC Annual Report 2022

Tl _ife Soiences busiresses offer dis }zjrm s
: tiors that make it guicker a

id=ntity life-threatening diseases, inc \‘ ing
rutting '.d’rt—rh" Iy et allews for
ey detectio. sen1nes 107 e oL, arne
bome testing P.t; for remncle cormmurities,

MR soals business sells Auid souirg
v oand trzdsntarkes products
s designed to provent fuaitive

Our cecentrofised model gives s the agil ity
i r’nph-dl'f & On OER rities i thess newy

aroe s g e arrerls s ook
wath our sepplers and their incusiries to
innovate new, specialises products and
solations,

Our positive impact revenue streams are
ar mporant componemt of cur o garic
growth strotegy acd each Sector has
qrowth plans in placs.

1ioday 216210135




DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

" DIPLOMA DELIVERS
RESPONSIBLY
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Our Group purpose is to consistently deliver
value and reward our stakeholders by making
a positive difference to our colleagues, our
customers and suppliers, and our
communities. We are committed to fulfilling
our purpose in a way that is environmentally,
socially and ethically responsible.

DVR governance

Cur OVE governonee struztre s lean and
retocts our Jecortralised ~racel Tre Grosp:
b rospor ity “or provi direction
ard sappeort, and the Boar < Ltirmate
awversight and resporsizility for Dy across

1he Groap.,

Opreratioral exsoution, = plaee in ol
bsimes e, close to our costomes
Managing Directors ar ponaitile tor VR
frer o . Wale giver
Howibility 1o priortise UY=< fac0s areas in line
with rnizter irezs, Targets
rlevel cnzthe

) es the Oroup
CEOard > e rsitie tor
CEITOITIaras w aren of
resparaibility,

e withy oar 2021 pledge, DVR Pl are now
¢ gl:J?::J ity e r(—)gulu\ ITnge et
lirg bicmnual cpdotes on
e, Dur brosinesag report their
arterly to the Groap,
ro it s rovin by the sonior France
t drranaged ‘or irnpravenent by
the Seclor leaderskip toam.

year as pael of mancgzment e e
aralysis is consicered ¢ useul ol for
assessing clirmate-related risks and
opporturities. This datais reviswed by the
Seatars, Gravp Finarcs, DVR steering
comrmittee and the Booard,
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The role of the DVR Steering Camittos,
which is chairec by the Group CEC s 1o
Qutlire Sroun stratxgy ogairst the TR
Trarmeawcrk, cet Qroup initiatives <
Targets, suport th

ard monitar and communicat

of DVR managerment :

R foot sies heavil; inrogular inte nal ans
VR ‘et aies heavily im 1agular internal andd
SLT cornnrorications

Qur Senior | eadership Tearn (5LT), whick
includes business MDs, is usdated guarterly
orn CVR during regular 5L L peat

CEOD. ey also atterd e aepth sessin

with members of the DVR Steerng
Committes 1o eviewn

OVR governan: 3o DVR
stratecy arsd i :

thair secc

Ihe Excoutive team is updated o TR
along with the SLT but also hald rmo-e
cdetailed sossions bionnually as port of the
txecutive Meetings. Sector CEOs meet
Biarmually with the DV Steering
Corrrmittes far o OVR Oovernance msetirg
to discuss DVR strategy, governance,
clirmate related rishs and appartuniliszs,
ard review progress ard initictives.

The Board halds an annual OVR session to
review DVR strategy, objes andd

pragress. Climate reloted risk naragearmeard
is integrated inte Oroup risk Nanagement.

yoday 216ayoiig




Our DVR governance structure

Diplorma PLC
Board &
Group CEO

DVR strategy &
framework l

Group DVR
govemo nce

DVR
Strategy
Committee

Executive
team

Reporting & -—
performance €

Sharing resources,
tools, best practice
& support .
Development of

DVR networks .
Business

< MDs&DWR
Committees

Oversight of DVR strategy &
performance

Oversight of climate-refated
risks & opportunities

T

Sector & Group performance
against targets

Sector & business
governance and reporting

Identification &
management of Group &
Sector climate-related risks

T

DVR perforrmance and
initiatives

ldentification and
management of climate-
refated risks




Qur metrics and target

B [

Responsible business

Soe o . 5t LS T IS _ " I Tl T el N S B
—ee N O B A L e e R I 3T

Charitable donations
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DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

Taskforce on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (

TCFD): our response
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DELIVERING VALUE RESFONSIBLY
CONTINUED

[STalchs

RISK MANAGEMENT
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Our policies and procedures
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

MEASURING
OUR
PROGRESS

FINANCIAL KPis

We measure our performance against

a number of financial and non-financial
metrics which reflect how we are delivering
against our strategic objectives (as set out

on pages 22-33), our financial model (see page
22) and our ESG framework (see pages 34-57).

Organic revenue growth

Crganic revenue growth is the Group's
number cne pricrity. We ‘ccus on
produrts and solutions which are
criticat to customers’ nesds, giving
resilience 1o revenues. We target

mid single digit crganic growtn.

6%

Five-year average

Reported revenue growth

We aim to deliver sustainable doub.e-
digit growth through ¢ corr bination
of organic growth and high-guality,
value enhancing acquistions which
accelerate ous 0rganic growth,

18%

Five-year cornpound

Adjusted operating margin

Crar differentioted value-added
saiutions and custormerfocused
approach drive custome: .ayaity
and credte pricing powér, supporing
sustainable and attrostive marains
We target o margin of 173,

I179%

ive-year average

Adjusted EPS

EPS growth is ¢ measure of how
successtul we have beer n groveng
organicaly and through acquiston,
including copital allocation a~d tax
censderations We targer doube cight

EPS groveth. )

17%

Five-year compound

Free cash flew conversion

Astrong balaace sheet gad cosh fow
func oo growth strat
hezithy, grow na dividends, We torg
free cash flow convers o- of 90~

6%

Five-year average

ROATCE

Trus ronsyres B

WSl

L owe ore ot

geEneraurg ceTorrs o the

rrare. e targeT RDATOT

1ents e

ntne ~ishteens

20.2%

Five-yvear avercge
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NON-FINANCIAL KPIs

QUR COLLEAGUES

Engagement index
An externally benchmarked score from our
annual engagement survey

TARGET
muintain; O /O '
2 2

R

&

% women on the Senior Management
Team (SMT)

Lost time incident {LTI) rate
Number of LTis per 1,000 employees

TARGET FY30 TARGET

5% year-on-year reduction 400/
o+

20 21 22 2 2

~ « #
= = &

OUR ENVIRONMENT

% key suppliers aligned
with Suppfier Code’

FY30 TARGET

80%

of key suppliers aligned with
Supplier Code by FY30

59%

% of total waste to landfill % reduction of Scope 1& 2 emissions

against FY22 baseline

FY30 TARGET

50%

reduction in Scope 1 & 2
emissions

FY30 TARGET

<15%

waste to landfill

60%

(beseline year)

10,61 Do

Tonessupplers gre
L ROER NPT

A9 Diploma PLC Annoal Repoit 2072
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SECTOR REVIEW

CONTROLS
SECTOR

60 Diploma PLC Annucl Report 2022




The ContrOIS Sector Revenue by segment’
businesses supply
specialised wiring,

cable, connectors, .

Wirndy City Wire

fasteners, control 2% o
devices and adhesives o G HmES
for a range of

technically demanding

applications.

Wlndy Crty Wire (WCW) 50%

.Jlgfrll‘ ;

ACIRSTSEAIRE IS
sigrificant tirme and oo
SOVINGE S s,

Wire & Cable (UK): 9%
Slist and faxible cabl:
cis and cable
dentification, terrination and
|rv|rvmenwmt |.;|L:’jt s and

castomers in Em Spe.

Interconnect: 22%

Harmess companents and
specialist corinectors used in
technically aemand rg
applications across rmaltipls
industres in Eurep= and the JS.
O Lusinesses ararige
ot procucts and valae-odd
services and products including
prrotective slesvin i, cut-to-
lergth tulzmg, bitting, connector
assembly and prototypee
guantities of customised
rrulti-core cobles.

3% Adbesives

Revenue by geography’
Specialty Fasteners: 10% Y geegraphy
:|Je\ |oh)j faterriiary-cpLaliy ’

: Soation rmd o1

.ufllL = odded ser

costarners in Civil Aerospas,

Wotorsport, Defencs and . ‘

qenercIF \nd"_';mal. Ve olon 58:/0 I\{‘m k- Americs

:UppO! tkey custormers wits 23,,/0 Lr).?\ .

Sur GLLGEted invantany . 16% Continental Eorope
i ) ’ % 3% Oiher

replenishirment sclations,

Fluid Controls: 6%
Fiuid cartrollers, compressors,
rature and

2 rement dovices,
and pecmhred fiquid o spemmq
comporents primcrily fo
custarners in the LiK Fo )j &
Beveraze sector,

Reported revenue (£m)

Adhesives: 3% {compo.nd growth over five vears)
Specialty silizones, adbesives

and sealonts togethar with o
technical support and other + O O
value-addea services. 1) [

22 492.8

&1 Diplerna PLC Annual Report 2022
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

FY 2022

FyY 2021 Change in the year

Rorere £492.8m

£343.3m  +44%

growth

Organic revenue +24%

+16%

profit

Adjusted operating £1 O 5 Bm

£72.4m +46%

. margin
“Qur International Controls g

Adjusted operating 21 5%

2171% +40bps

businesses have shown - Share gains in high growth end markets

tremendous energy in and compelling custormer proposition
driving an excellent WCW performance:

organic revenue growth 32%, including

building momentum - it's
been great to see their hard double-digit volume growth
work pay off this past year.”

18%, with accelerating growth in
David Goode attractive end segments while also
Sector CEQ, Controls breadening US and European exposure

- International Contrels crganic growth

- Product extensicn: excellent organic
growth in our new Adhesives business ling,
with a bolt-on acquisition to add scale
and diversify end markets

Sector finoncial performance

s T

MRS O

“It's been another great year
for Windy City Wire thanks International Controls .5 5°
to our great proposition, 8L TR
winning culture and ability
to deliver for the customer.”

Rich Gaigano
CEO, Windy City Wire

'

Interconnect o~ s oz ol e

STord ot Lno

Specialty Fasteners = -z . .0 .




CASE STUDY
High growth end
- markets

- Strategic progress

modoy 01baong

- Adhesive

Lyttt T

Our Adhesives business delivered >20%
arganic growth, helped by exposure to high
growth end markets. Our preducts and
solutions have many opplications, including
in electronic control units for electric and
autonomous vehicles and for waterproofing
connections as part of a large scale fibre
cptic roll-out in the UK by a mgjor
telecormmunications company.

Read more
diplomaple.com/about-us/our-sectors/
controls
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The Seals Sector
businesses supply a
range of seals, gaskets,
cylinders, components
and kits used in heavy
mobile machinery and
a diverse range of fluid
power products with
Aftermarket, OEM

and MRO applications.

Revenue by segment!

& 47% Intcrmatioral Seals
23% Mo X
18% US Industrial OLM
12% LS MRO

Revenue by geography!

In‘ternationdl Seols: 47%
T Seats bosinssses 0 Furope
anz Australic sapnly seals,
gaskets, pumips ard reloted
coosscrias, custorn-rmoulded
and nmachined pans, hydraclic
i s componets, and a
TS AN GE ot fuid power
produc s to Altermarket, OEM
1l MRO customers,

North American
Aftermarket: 23%
Supplies ¢ variety of seals,
gereraly on a next-doy basis
for a broad rarge of mobils
machinery Lsed in Feavy
Corstruction, Mining ard
Agriculiure, Products are used
in repair ard maimtenance after
equipment has completad it
initial warranty perioz or been

D the pre-used rmarket.
Customers are mainly repair
shops, engire and transmission
rebuilders and other heovy
equipment parts distributors.

US Industrial OEM: 18%
Supplies secls, aoskels, Gorings
ond cuztont moulded and
machined parts. The busiress
~otks clossly with customers 1o
soecify the mest appropriate
seal design, material ana
rmanrufactarer for the
application; provides technical
sLpport during product
developmert; ana delivers the
ics capabulities to support

srrall to mediom sized

Procuction runs,

& 50% MNortk Americo
37% N &turope
13% Internaticrcl

U5 Maintenance, Repair &

Overhaul (MRO): 12%

Cur MRG business, VaP

Technologies (VSF), supplies

high-guality gaskets and fuid RePOFtEd revenue (£m)
sealing products 1o eritical frarmipound growth over five years)
services in high-cost of failure

applications. The business works O

directly with customers to + O O
imgrove sealing performance,

praviding experlise, product

recommendations and training. 4

VEF sells prirmarily to

tranzportation, chemical

processing, power and marine

custorners.

Diplorna PLC Annual Report 2022
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“The team has been the
standout highlight of my
first year - they've shown
great leadership in driving
growth in a tough supply
chain environment. I'd like
to thank them all for their
commitment.”

Ted Messmer
Sector CEO, North American Seals

#2022 was a transformational
year for International Seals:
we've welcomed around 400
new colleagues from R&G
and other businesses and
enter the year ahead better
positioned than ever.”

Alessandro Lola
Sector CEO, International Seals

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
FY 2022

Fy 2021 Change in the year

Revenue

£331.4m

£263.7m  +26%

Organic revenue
growth

+14%

+/%

Adjusted operating
profit

£62.6m

£46.5m +35%

Adjusted operoting
margin

18.9%

17.6% +130bps

- Geographic penetration: Louisville giving
access 1o previously untapped Western
and Midwestern states, driving
accelerated market share gains in North
American Aftermarket

- Diversificotion in growth end segments:
International Seals organic growth 11%
with broad-based growth against a
strong comparator

- Product extension: strategic acquisition of
R&G in April to build scale in the UK and

broaden the Seals product portfolio into
pneumatics, expanding addressable
markets

- Building scaie: acquisition of ACT,
a supplier of innovative anti-corrosion
oroducts and solutions, adds further scole
to the high quality platform for growth
we have built in Australia over the last
three years

Sector financial performance

U Teeed

North American Seals =7 - - [~

LR VL LR O R

North American Aftermarket -

T ETE Tt e




ategic progress

International Seals <.

.. Australian Seols

CASE STUDY o

<
Product range 2
extension delivering z

organic growth

uoday o16azong

New proprietary products helped to drive
crganic growth of >20% in US MRO, The
business’s Service Equipment Rebuild Kits
{SERK™) provide customers with technical
expertise and a kitting solution that saves
time and money, and reduces the total cost
of ownership. Sales of the kits tripled in
FY22, attracting new customers and driving
market share gains.

Read more
diplomapic.com/about-us/our-sectors/seals/

FUDUIBAOLD) 230a0d10D)

S3U2W33D3§ [DIDUDULY

UCIIDLUIOLU| J8YL0




SECTOR REVIEW

LIFE SCIENCES
SECTOR

68 Diploma PLC Annugl Report 2022




The Life Sciences

Sector businesses
supply a range of
equipment, consumables,
instrumentation and
related services to the
Healthcare industry.

Canada: 43% Europe: 36%
Qur rmarket leading Canadian Cer frish K '% Lusinens
& &5 supply ¢lirical :
di-]g\ CSHTs st JFT]EIN alicn
ana producte, ©
suigical ﬁmurm
relatea cansumables anc
1 public hasoitols,
: ara petien! mor
leboratones. technalagies usedin. /;:H ating
theatres az well gz medicclly
Australasia: 21% supervised nutntion
A lzading supplier of
instrumantationr arcd
censumables 1o the pathalzg
scientific resecrch ord me d\r ]I
segments, Operating in
Avstralio and New Zecland, the
businzeses alzo supply spociclizt
surgical equipment and
consumables Lsec in hospital
opercting rocms.
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Revenue by segment’

36% Testing & Diagnostics
24% c

18% Gastreirtestingl
22% Cther realtbeare

Revenue by geography’

43% Canadia
36% [urops
21%  Aostralia

Reported revenue (frm)
(worrpound graowth aver five years)

+8% p.a.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

FY 2022 FY 2021 Change in the year

Revenue £188.6m £1804m  +5%
Organic revenue (4)% +‘| 4%

growth

Adusdoperstng  £410m £432m  (5)%

profit

Adjusted operating 91 7%, 239, (220) b ps

. . . margin
“Our Life Sciences businesses 9

have done a great jOb of - Organic revenue growth was 2% - Strategic acquisition of Accuscience:
developing our prod uct excluding last year's Covid-related increases exposure to high growth testing,

. : H revenues and was moderated by hospital diagnostics aond medical segrnents;
PIPEI'ne_’ fOCUSIng on . staffing shortages; returned to organic congt'mues the build out of o%r European
iInnovative prOdUCtS that will growth in G4 as expected footprint
]mprove potient ocutcomes - Strong dingnestics and endoscopy - C[i)isc'\pi‘\'wlec; portfolic management:

e : H erformance isposal of al-enviresciences
and pOSItIOﬂ us 1in h'gh - gector well-positioned for growth: exposed P
QI'OWth areas. Our prospects to rising diagnestics spend and significant
are exeiting_” elective surgical backlogs

Dan Brown

Sector CEO, Life Sciences Sector fina n,c'?l perfor:mance

et s e e e et e

R N ST e S B
-~ testing and diagnostics




CASE STUDY
Innovative products
driving growth

A key highlight for the year was Life
Sciences’ success with Fuji CADEYE™,

an innovative endoscope utilising Al
technalogy. Cur tearn partnered with Fuji to
commercialise this cutting edge product,
which has been a huge success and an
important contributor to cur strong
perforrance in endoscopy in the year,

Read more
diplomaplc.com/about- us/our-sectors/
lifesciences/

MIIAIBAD
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ENGAGEMENT WITH STAKEHOLDERS
AND SECTION 172 STATEMENT

Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006
requires the Directors to promote the
success of the Company for the benefit

of the members as a whole, having regard

to the interests of stakeholders in their o ot o e e exar s o
decision-making.

decisions made by tre Boord i the venr,

Dividend

Ore of the principa cocsions cons’oercd

oy thie Board aver the yeat mos becn in
relstion o ety e To

surmaking its decisions regurding the
final divdend ard 2022 nte:
the Boord consideres our she
expectotions, the Compans s
nosition, atd the Lirerar
o nrudent level of o vidend o
et the Anancior

2d W0 execule Sur sl

Acquisitions
Azguisticr opoortunit’cs -
oL strateqy, but thie
roondfu of ther potent
keno ders

Sxslig sid

Stakeholder engagemen

1
A A e B

Development toon
o o poten o acgusition 1
ong-tern impact, ali

JUSTOMer $eryic
anageimient teg

zalanizes the fin

How stakeholder interests have

influenced decision-ma

D omeqese b b o PR -
R

king




OUR COLLEAGUES OUR BUSINESSES OQUR CUSTOMERS

Why_;é eng_aée

“ b T, .
= o0 A P B
How we engage
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How the Board engages - el imacnoe e

- SrE o

%]
=4
=
©
o
=
Q
P
®
[
o
<
13
-
=
o
3
[
@

Outcomes/action taken
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ENGAGEMENT WITH STAKEHOLDERS
AND SECTION 172 STATEMENT
CONTINUED

CUR SUPPLY CHAIN OQUR INVESTORS ENVIRONMENT
AND COMMUNITIES

Why we engage Whywe engage

Why we enga

Lot
w3

How wé”enrgage

BRI 1

How the Board engﬁgés B A SR UL
o How the Board engages
Loy b s e e o Tt

7 How the Board enguge§

- I A I R s URIF LT
T A s I ne
Outcomes/action taken
z a




CASE STUDY

Relocation of Abacus dx and
Big Green Surgical

This year, two of cur Australian Life Sciences
businesses successfutly integrated their operations
at a shared facility. The objective was to create
better operational efficiency and improve service
to customers and suppliers. Careful consideration
was given to colleague wellbeing, engagement
and career progression, including through internal
communication, colleague consultation, and
openly addressing any concerns raised. The

move has improved employee engagement

and development, as well as Health & Safety.

The new facility also benefits from LED lighting,
better insulation and more efficient heating and
cooling systems.

MIIAIBAQ
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A number of our businesses have been
recognised by their custormers, suppliers
and colleagues this year.

Feefo Trusted Service Award
at Shoal Group OWO r

Techsil won the Al

Distributor Awards for the fourth
year running from a major
supplier

Silver EcoVadis award at VSP .
Technologies %

customer satisfaction at M Seals
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M Seals UK shortlisted in Filcon Electronics awarded best
Developing Future Talent 2021 European Distributor by a
Category for Make UK major supplier
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Q&A WITH OUR NEW CFO

What attracted you to Diploma? What are your priorities for
the year ahead?

“Our strong
performance and
strategic progress
in such challenging A
circumstances are
testament to our -
outstanding
colleagues.”

Chris Davies "
CFC T




FINANC!AL REVIEW

0]

Attractive, high teens margins Effective tax rate broadly unchanged
{See table 2) T - g
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Financial highlights (See tobie 1) b’_ E

wroday otbBazpayg

Double-digit organic growth

Profit befo

re tax

26% growth in adjusted EPS
and total dividend

3t
31t z

22UDUIAAOD) 33pJ0di0D)

IO fyy Lt e
Tabie 1: Financial highlights
) Reportea res Adjustee results

I FY o £y -FY o FY %o
2022 2021 change 2022 2021 change
- 1,012.8 <« -

' i 144.3

$3UIWBIDIG [BIDUDULY
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Table 2: Adjusted operating profit

A otlen opeorone prott ASUSTEC Operating Ma:mn
2022 ey k2 2022 201 bpe

£m i SR % G cnange

105.8 . - 21.5
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
CONTINUED

Free cash flow conversion 90%

R .

et

gement
PR Strong balance sheet

.

Liabilities to shareholders
of acquired businesses




(See table 3)
Employee pension obligations FX tailwind and interest headwind
Ces R TS I h I largely offsetting

Tvpe Carrency Amount GBP equivalent interest rate ey posute

Organic revenue growth

15%

Reported revenue growth

29%

Adjusted operating margin

18.9%

Free cash How conversion

Q0%

Net debt/EBITDA

1.4«

0]
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND
RISK MANAGEMENT

Effective risk management is integral to
our strategic ambitions and provides a solid
foundation for our businesses to scale.

Our risk management
framework

DIPLOMA PLC

Top down

The Group manages
horizon scanning for
emerging risks, review
of principal risks,
interngl controls,
processes and risk

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

management
AUDIT COMMITTEE frameworks
EXECUTIVE
TEAM
Bottom up

Our businesses
continually identify
LOCAL MANAGEMENT TEAMS risks and opportunities
to fead into secter and
Group risk reviews

OUR BUSINESSES



Risk appetite Emerging risk  Description o
v ST Technology o b 3
evolution <

s

£

Climate change

Digitalisation

Identifying and monitoring
material risks
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
CONTINUED

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group’s decentralised operations, which
have different Sectors and geographical
spread, helps mitigate the potential impact
of these principal risks.

Principat risk Risk description and assessment Mitigation

Downturn/mstcblllty Adverse change: n the major marxets. The busiresses identify key market drivers
. . That the nusinesses ooeote ' can result and mznitor rends and forecasts, as well
N major markets M3 Owsng revenue growth due te reduced as mairtaining close ~satianships with key

or de aved geand for products ond
servces, o margin pressures doe to

meeosen Comipet Tion.

Risk category
Macroexternal risk

Board risk appetite
Averse

Change in risk

S

This risk remaing at a similar lever toicst
year and s addressed continuous'y 7 our
risk rmanagerment LroCess.

customers who mhay Jive an earty warming
of slowing demand.

A numnber of characterstics of the Grougn™
businesses maderste the impoct of
economic and business cycles:

- The Oroup's cusinesses aperate ir three
different Sectors with different
charactenstics ana Qoross O nuMmber o7
Jecgraphic morkets,

- The basinesses oHer specizlised products
ond services, wnign are often specific to
their spplcat’on, Mcreasng customers’
Switcing costs,

- Anigr prenortion o the Group's revenus
Sorrprises consum e products, whicn
are purc hased s part of the customer's

> <ing oudget, rather than through

<

The oroducts 2re usad in
mrencrse and refurpishrmeny
molcotiore, rotrer than origing.

=4

inmant o anufacture,




Principal risk

Risk description and assessment

Mitigation

Supply chain

Risk cateqory

Strategic risk

Boord risk appetite

Cac tiocus

Change in risk

©

Supoly chaln disruption has reduced
snceast year but operationct
nterruptions at custormers and suppliers
continue.

The abilty 1o service our customers in a
simely manner is g key port of our value-

added proposition.

sor manufacturer-branded products,

there is tne risk that existing distribution
agreements and vertical integration of
suppliers is cancelled, therefore losng access

to key distribution channels.

There is also the risk of:

- Asupplier taking away exciusivity.

- Manufacturing lead tiries increasing as
a result of suppy chain shortages. We
have experienced this, particularly with
suppliers based in Asia, = the current
year.

- Supply chain partners not cperating 1o
the sarme ethical stondards as Dipiorna.

Manogernent continues 1o Dursue
diversificatior strategies and regularty
seeks alte native sourc'ng.

Long-term, muiti-year exciusive contracts
nave been signed with suppliers with
change of centrol clauses, where
applicobie, for protect'on or compensation
in the event of acguisition.

We mairtan strong relationships with
s.ppless and keep customers updated in
ihe event of change to retain key business.

Meet'ng vt key customers reguarly
1o gair insight inte ther product
-equire ents and market developrients.

We work with our supply chain partners

1w help thern meet our standards of
acceptable working conditions, financial
statiity, etnics and technical competence.
A thev are unable to meet these standerds
then we will source product elsewhere

Inflationary
environment

Risk category

Macro/externo rsk

Board risk appetite

— .
LAUTIOUS

Change in risk

®

Significant or unexpected cost increases by
suppliers due to the poss through of higher
commodity orices or other price increases,
higher trade tarifts and/or fereign currency
Auctuations, could adversely impoct profits
* businesses are unable 1o pass on s.ch coot
neregses to customers.

Irmoreved pricing processes and the
va.ue- adoed activities undertaken by the
CusiNesses mear we ore better able to
nass 08T Increases to customers.

A nuber oF characteristics of the Group's
ousinestes -noderate the impact of
economc gnd business cycies:

- Tne Croup's businesses operate in three
ditferent Lectars with different
charactenstics and across a nurrber
of geographic markets.

- The ousnesses offer specialived products
and tervices, which are often specfic to
Thet aoplication, incressing customers’

1IRINg COETS,

e prodaits ore wsed '
gintenonoe and refursishmoeny

0

MILAIBA

1ioday 216930135

AJUDULIACD a}.DJOdJOj

$3UBWALDIG |DIDUDULY

Qo
e
=2
@
=
3
=
]
=
3
o
=
o
=



INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

CONTINUED

Principal risk Risk description and assessment Mitigation
Unsuccessful Dipicrna has a strong history of disciplined A clearly defined acguisition strategy
. .. acquisitions. The business model of the 5 ploce witn o disciplined approach,
chUISItlon Group is based on successful acquisitions in - including financial return hurdies, to
large and developed markets and sectors. bringing high-quaiity, value-enhancing
Risk category businesses into the Group

Strategic risk

Board risk appetite
Tolerant

Change in risk

©

The acquisition pipeline remains
nealthy and Diplorna retains its
discizlined approach to bringing
high-guality, voiue enhancing
businesses into Diploma.

The foliowing are the key risks of an

acguisition process:

- The Group may overpay for a target.

- The acquired business may experience
limited growth post acguisition.

- Loss of key custormers or suppliers post
integration.

- Potential cultural misfit as smaller
businesses are faced with the new
reguirements of a listed Company.

The above may be the result of inadequate
due diligence, poor integration or unfecHstic
gssLmptions used in the investmenrt case.

An experienced Corporate Developrment
team is resnonsible for seeking and
evaluating new acquisition opportunities
with the Corporate Development Director
reporting to the CEQ.

Aforma due diligence process is followed
for every acquisition, with close supervision
by the CEC and relevant Group senior
management. A formai governance
process s n place up to Board leve'

A disciplined post-acquisition integration
arocess covers operationa:, fnancial,
governance, eqgai anc reporting matters
The Board reviews pe-formance of recent
acquisitions annuaily,

Geopolitical disruptions

Risk category
Maocro/externa risk

Board risk appetite
Averse

Change in Risk

@®

This risk rerrains erevated in certain
gecgraphies, incuding due to ongoing
events such as the conflict in Ukraine,

Diploma operates in established economies
with stabte political and egai systerms,

Gecpolitical events that could disrupt the
Oroup's operations are mainly related to:
- interruption of trade agreements
- Toriffs,
- Change of t-ade relationships ar-ongst
countries in which we operate
(e.s Brexit).
- Oovernrment budget spending.
- Political elections.

We continue to diversify our supply bose
and invest nproduct 1ange deveoprment

o mitigate @¥posuie 1o any single market
of regicn

Whenever poss bie, we capitalise on Group
svnerges and eversge Inter company
trading




Principal risk

Risk description and assessment

©
®0

Mitigation

Health & Safety

Risk category
Operoticnal risk

Board risk appetite

Aversa

Change in risk

©

Relgtive to FY27 thare has been o
significant decrease 'n Health & Sofety
risk 05 4 result of the concusion o the
Covid-1? pondermnic and imoravernants
i pracesses arising fromr the pandemic,

Some Diploma businesses are exposed to
Health & Sofety risks, including via the
envronment inwhich therr employees,
contractors, customers, and supplies
operate, or through the products they sell.

The Caovid-19 pander~iz paaced a greater
focus on Health & Safety andg preventive
measures 1o lirmit tne spread of Covd-15.
rripiemanting and cartinuousty evolv ng
thase measures nas irmproved Health &
Safety across the Group.

Additional y, management continues te
promote mental hecshh and welibeing,
offering support 1o coleagues end acgess
to anempioyee assistance programrie,

Technology & cyber

Risk category
Operationa’ risk

Board risk appetite

Lautizus

Change in risk

in 2022

L ieRasle]

The oLs nesses maimta
standard of cybers

accommode
practices it te
OCKAOWNE e

e the Covi

e

Group and operating pusiness rmaonagerment
depend criticaily on tirmely and reliable
nformation frormn their :T systems 1o run
their businesses and serve their customers’
needs.

Any disruption or denial of service may
detcy or impact decision-making i reliabie
date is unavailable.

Soor information handling or interruption
of business ray also lead to reduced service
o customers. Unintended actions of
ermcioyees caused by o cyber-attack mayv
aiscead to disruption, ncluding fraud,

The decentralized noturs of the Grour,
including stang-alone [T systerns for each
business, imits the potent’al impact to o,
ndividuet business, There s gqoog suppant
and back-up bu'it into iocal T systermne.

Al bLginesses inthe Groun have o rooust

cybersecurity prograrmime and we reguiaily

engage with Cybersecurity experts 1o
continuousy irorove and strengthen oot
T zystems.

A formalsed ERP approval and
imelemenrtotion process ensures
businesses have the most suitable
iT systems to effectivery Manage

tmeir busness.

Business continaity cians exist for ench
busnecs with ongoing testing.

O
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INTERNAL CONTRQOL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

CONTINUED

Principal risk

Risk description and assessment

Mitigation

Talent & diversity

Risk category

Operational risk

Board risk appetite
Cautious

Change in risk

®

This risk has increased in the year, many
due to current mdarket iabour conditions
with the tightening of labour markets
affecting candidate avaliobility and
retention, upward pressure onowage
leve's in certom geogranhies and
changing expectations of warking
envIrenments,

The success of the Group 's built on strong,
seif-standing managernent teams in the
operating businesses, committed to the
success of their respective businesses.

As o result, the joss of key personne! can
have an impact on performance for

a limited time period.

Not having tne nght talent or diversity

at ali levels of the organisation to deliver
Gur strateqy, resultng in reduced financiat
perforrrance.

Contractual terms such ag notice periods
and non-compete clauses can mitigate
the risk in the short term.

The Group places very high importance !

on planning development, motivation

and reward:

- Ensuring a challenging working
environment where managers feel they
have contro: over, and responsibitity for,
their businesses.
implermenting o structured taiert review
process for the development, retention
and succession of key personne’.

- Offering balanced and competitive
compensation packages with g
combination of sailary annual berus anad
iong-term cash or shore incentive plons.

- Giving the freedom, encouragement,
Hinancial resources and strategic support
for managers 1o pursde ambitious
growth plans.

Product liability

Risk category
Oonerotional risk

Board risk appetite
Averse

Change in risk

©

This r-sk emains at g sirmiar leve 10
iast year.

There s g riek that products supplied by o
Jroug business may fail in service, wnich

coaid lead 1o a claim under product iability.

The Group may te exsosed 1o legal costs
and potential damages if the clam
succoeds and the supplier faiis to meet its
liabites for waatever regson.

r stuanons where a Group businese is
selling own-branded products end cannc
subrogate the latiity 1o a suppler, the
Susiness wit e ap e for foilure of the

oLt

Ty insurance in poace
nate cover for each

Technically qualified pereonne: and contra!
cystems are In piace to ensure proaucts
meet quality requirements. The Grovp's
Dusinesses are requ'red o undertake
product risk assessments

and comprehensive supplier quaity

Q55 1ONCe assessrments.

The tusinessas, in their terms and
condTions of sole with cLstomers,

wili typically ~irrer the terms and
cordtions of purtnase from the suppfiers
1z it any laoilities.




Principal risk

Risk description and assessment

Mitigation

Foreign currency

Risk category

Finarscial risk

Board risk appetite

Cautious

Change in risk

S

This ris< has rermnained ot a simiiar ‘evel
to fast year.

The Group s exposed to two types of
financigr risk caused by currency voiatility.
Transiatioral exposure, on transfauing the
resuits of overseas subsidiaries imte UK
sterling; and transactional exposure, due 1o
operating Tusinesses’ revenues or product
costs belng denominated in @ currency
other than their loca currency.

Transiotional foreign exchange risk anses
primrorily with respect to the US dollar, the
Canadiar dollar, the Australion dollar and
the Euro.

A strengtheming of UK sterling oy 10%
agairst all the currencies in whic~ the Group
does nusiness, would reduce odjusled
operating profit oy aporeximately £177.0n
9%, due to currency translatior. Similarly,
a strengthening of UK stering by 10%
against all the non-UK sterling capial
employed would reduce sharenoiders’ funds
by £31.6m (5%

Transact’onal foreign exciange risk arises
orincipelly with respect to US doilars and
Euros, The majority of the Group’s Canadion
onz Austraisn businesses’ purchases ore
denominated in US doliars ond Eurps. The
Group's US nusinesses do not have any
material foreign currend v Transactional rs<,

The Group operates across a number of
diverse geographies but does not hedge
translotional exoosure of operating profit
ord net ossets.

The Group's businesses may hedge up to
80% of ferecost (for o maximum of 18
~months] foreign currency transactional
exposures using forward foreign exchange
contracts.

Rolling ~onthly forecasts of currency
exposLres ore reviewsd on o regular basis.

Details o average exchange rates used in
the translation of overseas earnings and of
year end exchonge rates used in the
transiction of overseas baance sheets, fol
tne principal currencies used oy the Groug,
are shown in note 26 to the consolidated
financia! staternants.

]
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

CONTINUED

Principal risk

Risk description and assessment

Mitigation

Non-compliance
with laws

Risk category
Operotional risk

Board risk appetite
Averse

Change in risk

@

Laws governing businesses continue
toincreqase 0 velume, scope and
complexity, Asthe Groun scales,
Businesses are 'ncrecsingly subject to the
-egulations of multiple jur'sdictions that
may not ali aign with one onother.

Our businesses are *acing a warge number
ot regulatory cnanges over the coming
vears in respect of ervirommental

cammitments and cent-ols.

The Group’s businesses are offected by
various statutes, regulotions and stondardz
in the countries and markets mwhich they
operate. Diploma PLC itself s o listed entity
subrect to regulotion and governance
requirernents.

The peard of ench pusiness is accountable
foridenti®ying and monitoring what laws
are elevont 1o their business, including any
ernerging or changing legislation, and for
ensuring commaerciol legal risks are
appropriately manoged.

Trne dead of Legal advises on legislative
and regulatery changes relevant to the
Growp o< a listed comopany and has
gversight of ail material transactions
including acguisitions.



VIABILITY STATEMENT -
DIPLOMA PLC

In accordance with the UK Corporate el
Governance Code, the Directors have
assessed the viability of the Group over

a three-year period to 30 September 2025,
which is a longer period than the outlook
required in adopting the going concern
basis of accounting.
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CHAIR'S INTRODUCTION TO GOVERNANCE

Compliance with the UK Corporote Gaovernance Code
1115 the Boord's view that for *lﬁ-— : il vear onded 38 Septorbe
1% baner o ant vl gl o incipsles and
Ath the ¢
thery dlinate
arroe jF[T“I_"Iﬂ S CIE N p‘C(E—‘
mercration Renort an e
2 SR RS STEN simee the | (SRl e! | 1‘m‘ orwrum\ n ARIias p
alloverance o contribzotian will e aligrod 10 the rroptiee oo ste availabee 1 1he rag)
e ider Lk Ton e,

Principies of the UK Corporate More information
Governance Code 2018

Board leadership and company purpose Road rore cnopogaes 77
Diploma s bed by on effective and
committed Board, dedicated o prmmating
the oy terre sust: l\“’Jl LLC eSS 2 the

s for sharohaldoers
and staket
wador society.

Division of responsibilities Fead more an pogoe:
The o the Char and the Growp: TEQ

are rote and thore is an oppropiate
b-;]\(]\"(x? QJF E v andd Ir\dcppr: s
MNon Bxecutive Dircaters.

Composition, succession and evaluation ead More on pris
Appaoirtmerss are cubject 1o a ‘ol 10810 13

rigorous and transparent procecdure.

Saczession plans are in pl(](r for the Board

and senicr marage~ent, An evatuation of

the Board andits ¢ _Jmmm_cc‘t is undertake

annually, in tine with the C

Audit, risk and internal control Read more oo
Farmal trarcparent policios anad prosedures, 107 1o 107,
o tooonsure the indepondercs and
S the rtereal and oxternal

Remuneration
Eiplorma hos rermmuneration polic)
o attract the sest talent and promiots
torrn sestainakle perfarrance aligned etk
sharchaicer interesta, Dxec otive
crrureration s aligned to the Comoa

: and valaes and i= claarly lirnked 1o

ey ot |]DCJ-T>,-HT‘ strotegy.
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Dear Shclreholder,

fthe Board, | arr delighted
to present the Compony’s Corporote
Sovernance Report for the year ended
3C Sc-pfe o 2022, wnicn s iy frst ren
as your Chair, Cne of the responsibiities of
mryorole e Cholr ic 1o promete ana o veee
the higrest standards of corparate
governance withi the Board ond ooros
the Group. The Boora olays a ¢ itica’ ro
in ensunng that every nort of cur Group
conducts iTs business in g rmanner whick
s corsiEtent with etrical standards
approprigte te a resporsible corporcte
citizen. A sound corporate governance
framewaor< with the right systens and
contre s is <ev 1o ensul ng sustainabie
ONG-TENT SUCCess we are Qlss very
corscrous that EHE‘(T\-\.’E‘ gOVEff'Cl"‘w
ourey o matter of reguiatory corra
DU ECCOTPALSEs ManY taues inciuding
cperating with integ nty ond Nonesty,
prorroting diversty ana emabling better
dec sion making trrough nclusion 1o
ensure we belonce the needs of oll
stakenolders and cperate 'noa for ane
transpatent manter

I P w,
L senalr

mrele

This vear wil be the 30th annversary of
the publication of the Zadbury Comrritize’s
epoT T an COrporate governance, the
‘U‘md:rug cocunenit for *oday'< U
Corporote Governance Code |
The 'epo't highsighted the \mpo-'faﬁte f an
effective board in creating and rmaintan =g
good corporate governance and set out the
fundamentals of good governcnce whan
rerrain ' the current Code. As the
environment i which corporate oitzems
aperate nas evolved ard our Group has
cortinued to grow in scale and cormplexity,
we have continued 1o develop and rnorove
whot constitutes good goversance with o
oarticular focus on stakeho ders,
sustanability, a~d lang-term valae creation

“The high standards of
corporate governance
underpin everything
we deliver.”

T AnmGa! Repe

The Board s very consiious of the -o'e 't
inensuring that Bipiora ooerctes :noo
nner when 1S Consistent witn the high
~oaras of corporate gavernonce, The
> hac gozelerated the evaiction:
snarehcidere and cther
s 1C these ond orooder tames.
Shonaat petformonce @ no longes the scie
guiding reQsor 7o 0 Cornoration, melead it
TLst comsider its prace and role in society,
1o resihence a7.d ite atlity to create value
over tirme for a wide range of differem
stakehaiders. Trrsugnout the last few vears,
we hicee develnoed our approach omd
thinking aroJnz smorehoiders and
StOxCho ders, Now Wil Cooture tTher v ews
and dever the'\r mterects. A cote clenent
of this is the worx Toat the Board has ao-e
re thot D ooma
o wUtes 0 seder sooiety T rough
sustainabne, lorg-ter T proclices ds wel o
ERroLGn 0wt Deliver nig
(TVR) targets, Furthie mforotio:
sustaingtity crograrmes con te founo on
pages 42 1¢ 3. sntinued to
evoive anc ermbed ou OVR programme
throughout the Graup. insights form our
OWR progrars~—e nove peen used to informm
steps taren oy 1ne Board, executive
Tansgement ond our busnesses 1o
AUS (ala LA b

=f furtn

innl

[«]

COVETINE yesr

e
T

Joue Resgonsit y

O] AR

e G e G

remrave Thie effic efro,
Crocessas vt 1
STIDOWE Y Suf T
aglty ard soeec
enhancing ooz acc 'wto'ﬂ‘rv

cHective icadershp ond eptimal collean se
enguaernant « cepends or o M=ath
eripowerea a~d postve business Culture,
Dipioro nas
ond Cores ve o
Qover
DCroes Gl v led L s
chaleng ng times The o
cuture e been porticuiarny arute this
Ot Lo SnUes 1o asapt 16
Al YR =f
1**2 Bagm fos T ot tore

moe T

strarg puronse set oF values

Lt fy

Gartento’s which
dane

v

LI,

ortgore of

Board succession and evaluation

F0ard CuCCesSIaN TemMans o key area

of actnaty and focus. Following the
retirerrent of John Mooholas ot our Annaal
Gaenerc Meeting (AGM) or 19 January 2022
1assared the 'cle of Thair of vour 3ocrd.
Barbora Gibbes stepped down as CFO o
30 September 2022, and Chris Davies was
apooirted 1o the rale on 1 Novernber 2022,
frne Trorourn and Andy Smith ore due to
retire orict to the 2024 AGM gnd therstore
tne Buord has comomenced the rocesi o
seeking sutabie candidates to take over
tmerr Commrittee Char positons. The Board
& keenly aware of the reed for diversity ond
ciugon, which is a key componert of the
Group's VR orogramime. The Board wi
cortinue to 5et the right conditions and
aad by exampie through ts own approsc

o, inclusion and diversity across it
cormnost on: Terther information can be
‘ound i1 aur Nominote Committee Report
o pages 108 10 12

A woy ascect of good governance s forre
Scord te or ticaty seif-cnalyse el it
mrembets ond Committees, - order to
continual v reprove its effectiveness, The
Board corries out effectiveness reviews
anucly, and i~ FYZ22 this was uhdertaken
meermally = une with the Code. Thig
e.aluaten has alss enabled the Sosrd to
npo-tunites for 1 1o further
roorese ts eftectiveness: addtional detall
oo the evaluotion resuts and aregs of
sgreed focus can oe founa onpage 113,

mertfv s

The Boord's priorties for 2023 -emain
consistent, it g continued focus on the
rpemmertotion of the Group’ strategy;
chalienging and empowering monage T et
clanning and management of
oord s wel' placed to execute e
wardsm o role te enswre that the Group
e 1s evoive, scae and deliver
Tosustanable growth We wili aleo
be agie, gdop.:mg aur thinking
d prormoting the interests
ovess ang fthr‘r

1
=

O AGM wit se netd o 18 danaary 2023
itas snarenoiers o the Comrpony,
abie 1o atternd 1o meet with the
e oy rigttere
efutuesuct

David Lowden
Chair
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GOVERNANCE AT

Ethnic diversity

100% Non etbric minority

Skills and experience

BIE. Industrial & Dieti ik din- Seetars,

A GLANCE

Gender diversity

57% Male
43% Fomale

Retal and FMCG Soc tore

Financial and Risk Moraaginons

Operations

Customer Service

Health & Safety )

Strategy

M&A/Financing

International Business

Board and Committee attendance FY22 {as at 30 September 2022)

Length of tenure

57%
14%
29%

0 5vyears
3 & years
6-9 years

LYy
L

»

Member

Boal;d

David Lowden a8

Audit Committee

John Nicholas 3/3

Johnny Thomson 10410 -

Barbara Gibbes 9/9

Nomination Committee

Remuneration (fommiftee
6/6

11

Anne Thorburn 10/10

Andy Smith 10710

Geraldine Huse 10/10

Dean Finch* 910

1 Dean Finch was unable to atrese. S

Changes to the Board
- John Nicholas stepped down from the
Board on 19 January 2022,

Board activity and focus area

o0

® Strotegy and strategic execution
Colleagues and Cutture

25

72 Diploma PLC Annual Resort 2022

David Lovwden was appointed as Chair of
the Board and Nomination Cormmittee
an 12 lanuar, 2002

Fincnos
Risk

- Barbo
Board

Ay

wera calied orshort notice

ra Gibbes stepped down from the
on 30 September 2022.

75

Operations
Governance

-
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Our governance framework

The Board comprises the Chal, Executive Directers and Independent MNon-Executive Directors, and is respensizie fo

the performance and

lomg-termn success of the Compeny, inciuding health and safety, feadersnip, strategy, values, stondards, controle and risk manogement,

David Lowden

Audit Cornmittee
Chair: Anne Thorburn

Oversees and monitors the Compony’s
financicl statements, accounting
processes, audit {internal and external},
internal controls systems and finoncial risk
rnanagement procedures. Also monitors
the effectiveness of the internal audit
function and reviews the externat auditor
independence and performence.

See more on pages 102 to 107.

Treasury Committee
Provides aversight of treasury activities in
implementing the treasury policies
approved by the Board.

Anne Thorburn

Board Committees

Nomination Committee
Chair: David Lowden

Regularly reviews structure, size and
compaosition of the Board and its
Committees. [dentifies and nominates
suitable condidates to be appointed to the
Board. Leads the Board’s succession
planning and keeps the senior leadership
needs of the Group under review.
Oversees the developrment of a diverse
succession pipeline,

See more on pages 108 to 113,

Administration Committee

Conducts general business
adrministration on behaif of the Company
within clearly defined limits delegated by

the Board and subject to the matters
reserved to the Board.

T

—esdtn e Toreette e

Independent
Non-Executive Directors

Remuneration Committee
Chair: Andy Smith

Reviews and recommends the frarmmework
and policy on Executive Director and
senior management remuneration.
Reviews workforce remuneration policies
and alignment with cutture.

See more on pages 114 to 138.

Disclosure Committee

Oversees the disclosure of market
sensitive information.

Executive Directors

Chief Executlve Officer and Chief Financiaol Of-hcer

eas e e errertotor of e Gy 1

Executive team

0
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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- Anne Thorburn
Senior independent
Director
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SKILLS AND EXPERIENCE

David Lowden
Board Chair & Nomination Chair

Joined
October 2021

Current external appointments:

- Seror Independent Directar,
Morgan Sindalf pic

- Chair, Capita PLC

Relevant skills and experience:
- Industrioi andg Distribution Sectors
- Francal ana Risk Management
- Operations
- Strategy
- M&A and Finoncing

Imternationa! Businese

Past appointments:

- Choir, PageGroup pic

- Senor mdepsmdent Directer,
Berendsen pic

- Chair, Bunts A,Qrt‘* oC
Neon-Executive Director, Wiliam Hill plc
ard Cable & Wiretess Woridwide p'e

- Chef Exective, Tayior Nelson Sofres

Johnny Themson
Chief Executive Officer

Joined
February 2015

Current external appointments:
MNmne

Relevant skills and experience:

dustral Distribetion ond Serv L

Secto

et
Service

cal ant Nek Mo
Ooerations and Lustor
Stratedy
- MAEA OnZFn

ritaagtiensg Bu

NNl

Past uppomtments-

Chris Davies
Chief Financial Officer

i)
V-

e
RIS TN AP

Anne Thorburn
Senior independent Director & Audit Chair

Joined
September 2075

Current external appointments:
Non-Executive Director ang Crar o the
audit Comimittee, TT Eectiorcs pic

Relevunt skills and experience:
2B Industria. and Marufactunng Sectore
- Finangiof ava Risk Monage et
- Stotegwy
M&E A anag Financ ng
internotionsi Busess

Past appomtrnents.
ncial Officern, Exova Group i
e Directorn
Britich Sovtiene indu Ii;*riei =l
- Nen Execetve e

ecter, B e

Past oppomtments




Andy Smith
Independent Non-Executive Director
& Remuneration Chair

Joined
Fabr v 2015

Current external appointments:
- hipre

Relevant skills and experience:
oo troare, Retol PMCG ane Ll

targ,

- Coergtion:, H= ane Tustorer Service

- Strotegy and Rk Monagerent

- S opranabil g Dheeraty E.p, v B ncis
ancd bleat Comety
- ternetor a Buuness

Past appointments:
Managqing

vaie
Woter Se

e Directarn, Sovern Trent plo

Y
Retad and s
Severr Trent oic

oot

Director, Severr Trent bery ced

Geraldine Huse
Independent Non-Executive Director

Joined
Jnnaary, 2020

Current external oppointments:

- “resigent, Procter & Sambie, Tomada

Relevant skills and experience:
ond FMCGE Sectors

mer Service

a esand Marketing

verst,, Eguity & ncics’on
satonai Developres
ionan Business

vl
\terr‘

3 ’)l’

Past appoantmentS'
- Crisf Executive Offcer 280 Centra,
Fuope
Cmes of the notrute of Grocers
Cratr natio-

John Morrison
Group Company Secretary
& Head of Legal

Joined
Lpg 2000

Committee membership

IE] Remmomerat o

(o] N=]

Dean Finch

Independent Non-Executive Director

Joined

Wy 2000

Current external appointments:
Srowp Chefbaenutie, Sersimeran PLC

Relevunt skllls and expenence'

"id Sk '-wr"a:)q@me’*
~d Custormes Service

Crlet Erect ve
Met'ony Exprees ©

Crret BErecur.

- Growo

ress

e
are fit

. Services ond Retal Secios
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

“he Boord is "esponsibie to snareholders for ROLES IN THE BOARDROOM

the Groun's financiar andg operational

periormance, sk managemaent. culture, Non-Executive Chair
and is collectively responsible tor promoting
tne long-ter success of the Group.

The Board is responsbie for monitaring
progress mode agamst strotegic objectives,
approving proposed actions and ensuring
that the appropriote internal contrals are 'n
piace ond that they ave operating effectively.

There s a fo-—g scheduie of matters
reserved for the Board winch sets out the
ctructure under arich the Board manages

1y ressorsbilities, providna gudance on
how it discharges s authority and
mranages the Soord's activities The Board
< nssisted by three principal comme Trees
o tiom and Reruneration),
=ain ol which sresponsible for reviewin:
and deoling with rmatters within its own

ter s of reference. pe i T e imee e e e e e

" -
e

Matters reserved for the Board

The Board has a formal schedule of
matiers reserved for its decisions:

purpose, strategy and managernent TN LS LUt e A N
values, culture and stokeholders B T S A S C SRR A S S
membership of the Board and other : - - : N
appointmerits

financial and other reperting and
controls

audit, risk and internal contrals

controcts aond capitel structure

communication Lo e e I L S S P e

remuneration T T R S TR S i T T TN TP
delegation of authority . : ' ) ‘
corporate governance and other ; - ¢ e
matters :




BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MONITORING CULTURE

Purpose, culture and values

ae Boord s resoonsie for ensuning that
the Group achueves 15 purpose, whith
cansistert], deliver vaiLe and reveoro

B

stakeholders by making o d Ference to ou
colleagues, customers 3nd comrrur ties. I
reviewing and ensy -m, the ~plermentoton
of the Oroup’s strategy, the Baard ensares
that the obyectives of Dur purpose are met
while ¢so tak'ng into account tne reks ong
opportunities faci~g the Grouo,

o

The 2018 UK Coroorate Qovernanoe Code
‘the Code) emzhanioes the "rporionce of
the ole of the Socrd regarding cuiture, w'Th
specific recemmendations that the Board
assesses and manitors O decestraised
model means that cuture ‘s embedasd i
Cur busiresses, eack of worien s s e
UMIQUE aspelts which s DeeLe 218 01
10 the autonorsy and e oov.e ment t
underping e Grous s sucs

there gre core shiared valaes oo-css our
businesses: respect, Tontinuous
rmprovement and aozountab te

. However

Dur'ng the year, the Booro nos moniored
cuitureina naroer of woys. T s nicludes
business visits p’@ser'wtoiwow‘ fromn Sector
leadership, s Gy rovievy 505

as ‘pdote< on penp
Sroup AR Directorn Soccess SRt A
our velue: odd mooel ~equires comrtant
evoiut'or, and our culture hos a wrminal rale
o ploy in suoportng arowth Anper
consigdering acquisiton strateges Tuturc
fit 5 also on impenant ares o
discussion.

S v |
e froe the

Ome of the ey vy i9 whi
carexperience and e oluote the coture s
through meeting with colieagues
bus‘. L2555, We were de\'\a‘r*h@d totravel o

D55 Dun

in Louis

Cc:ieague Engag
npoge IHtn 3T

futmer insigrt.

have a

How the Board monftors culture

The Board
- Sirategy updates

CEOS repors

Frecertations by the Group IR Directo
- Sector and function presentatons
- Empioyee engagemment survey
- Ste sisits
- BoordCom

Tittees

Ouw Board Corme ltees Giso play an

mpoetant fule nomonitonng ou” culture:

- Rerrignzration Comrmittee receives
wodates frorm tne Group =R Zirector Thot
provde ar oservew of pay structures
acrees the Grous and their ai-gnment
wit™ our putpose, values and stategy.
s aliows the Committes 1o ensure Tat

¢ evac~t oolices and practices are

mietent with our values

adit Commmittes nas avers'gat of nternal

arcess *Ginternial

Ot e and Lontinuous
wihof wochocan give an

wf cuture, porticuarly homing
inan any megotve elements that dos't
aagr vtk the Group's culture,

Employee engagement

"me doardis commmitted to engaging

& th e ninyees one has considered the
2rmpin, @8 engagement methods specitied

Je out feli that atermnotive
rethogs ove more appropnate, Gven

e Group's cecentralised model and ts

\bp ead, the Board has

At a muit-foceted approacs

o giobal wareforce

one Direstor or grows

w1h strong channe's

m MDs to their

Ctive Sector CEC as well as

it e globcl workforce

rtrg funct ons,
atterm feo

gethe:
TEnication

he oo d fesls we informern on olleague

WEws 093 1T otters and uses g combination

of ~retnode to comply with the Code's

reguiteerts

- Requior updates to the Boore ot overy
scheduies 3oard ~eeting on peopie
mnatters, Over the post yeor. colleogue
wells veing and mo ave been crezs of
keer ‘ocus

- Colencue, ta'ent and cullure
frem the Group HR Director,

n Commmities reviess

pdates

- TreFer,
workicree poy cractices aorces Diplorma
T~e Boord reqguicrly undertakes ste viats.
ecutve Boord rrerbars reguio: iy
jrxter. ot with ind.vidoeal businesses ond
our flat strecture ensures strong chonnels
of communication
- TrebBn aj.vofpe
cuttames of the Grew

[

q

nted woth the
r Coleaque

Engogerrent Sarvey o £
together wth key earmings, We we'e
ghec anth the nigh part

a wd engager ¢t NSes SCOTe! e ful
resuits of The survey are detal ed o0 pages
5010 37
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P

- consideres ars decsions made by the Board in the yeor

Set out below are some of the «ev oot

SR

Finance Operations

Strotegy & strategic execution

- Regdlarly e,

25%

petformance ¢
including
FRanaging

strete o
ctakeoar regpett o7
the pandernic

Presertat; + the Corporate
Develzprmicrt Director and S
leadarahit, on strateqic praort
excc _ticn agairet those priorities
Reviewed ard discussed our ESG stiategy
and approach, Delvering value
Responsisly )
Reviewed ard appr
M&A and busines: e .
QCThLies, reorganisat o s
other prajects.

Strateqy reviev session.

¥

20%

Reseived (pomtes onthe Group's finonciol
preet frare

Approve 1 e 2023 budget; menitored
pe-ferrance against the 2022 budget
“hiowugh regular oresentations from the
Cro.

Assessed and approved the proposed
dividend payments, bolancing the views
ot various stakehoiders.

Investor relations: received regular reports
imcluding share register movernent and
feedback from anolysts and investars
Presentations from Tax and Treasury
Functions.

Control of Treasury ond Tax pelicies.

=
10%

Regu.or updates from the CEO.
Monrared and discussed the impact
of Covid-19 on the Group's operations.
Maodern Slavery Staterment.

Sector presentations.




Colleagues & culture

15%

- Reviewed Groug CoiteagLe Ergogement
Survey.

- Received reports or work*orce werlbeing
throughout the year.

- USA site visits.
Talent and successior updote.

- Whistichlowing reports.

15%

Received reports on the mocroeconomic
environment, world events ond emerging
trends.

Arrual risk review: review of principal
risks to ensure they remain appropriate
together with mitigating activity;
reviewed and apgzroved the inclusion

of new and emerging risks.

CGluarterly risk updates.
Cybersecurity briefing.
Annual Insurance Review,

Governance

15%

MBIAIDAD
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Member Meetings attended

5/5

Anne Thorburn
{Chair)

5/5

Andy Smith

Eiercldine Huse 5/5

Dean Finch 5/5%

The role of the Committee

The Audit Committee is resporsible for
ensuring that the Group maintains a strong
control environmaent. [t provides effective
governance over the Group’s financial
reporting, includirg oversight and review
of the systerns of internai control and risk
rmanagement, the performance of internal
and externat audit functions, as well as the
behaviour expectad of the Group's
employees thiough the whistleblowing
policy and similar codes of conduct. The
Committee continues to focus on
rnonitaring and overseeirg management
on these improvements to governance,
complionce and financial safeguards.

Terms of reference can be found on
our website at www.diplomaple.com

102 Diplema PLC Annual Report 2022

Key matters discussed

- Reviewed and agreed the scope of audit
work to be undertaken by the external
auditor and agreed the terms of
engagerent and fees to be paid for the
external audit.

Reviewed the Apnual Report & Accounts
and received reports from the CFO and
the external auditor on the key
accounting issues and areas of significant
Judgement.

Raviewed the report on compliance with
the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018
and reports on the provision of
infermation to the ouditor.

- Reviewed the report frem the CFO on the
centrols in place to mitigate fraud risk,
Reviewed the Half Year Anrouncemant
and received reports from the externs
auditor on the key aocouring ios .« o1
areas of significant judgemenrt .
Reviewed the trading update-.
Reviewed the effectiveness o 1o
internal controi and risk man:
procedures and where approprict.
recommendations to the Boare on e
for improvernent.

Invited the Group Internal

to attend meetings to review 15

of the imernal audit work for the

year and to agree the saope and e o0f
internat audit work to be carns
following year.

Reviewad the UK Corprrate. (5w
Code 2018 and future r=;.o-

section 172 Companies

Approved the Commmil to:

programme for 2023,

Approved the Gaing C e o Vi
Staterments.

Continued to monitor <

oudit referm and che

Received training ana

external advisors on L%

reporting requirermnert:

Oversaw the audit pe-trar ot e o




Deor Shareholder

2 Audit Cor mttee aesists the Board in
narEng 18 resnens ies veth regara te
rIGT ‘tcw.“-o tne mtagrty of Group financia
g, extermal and mernal auddits and
. Thie ‘ncades advisng on the
reappontment ans ndependerce of
Gcud s and assessing the qual'ty
of Therr services and reviewing the
efectiveress and aopropriateness of the
Commpamy's imternial audt activities, interna
cgement systenr s,

exter

contras and men

Cur "j the yecr erded 30 September 2022,
tre Comr ‘r? ¢ han erswed thst U has hisd
oversigrt of allinese areos while a Lo
focusing nr Fverse changes in tne external
envircnment, Both reguiotory and oontical,
ncloding sry continaed residus’ repoct

o tne Co. 1 F o had
a-angeof
rr:w;zqef“ent :];t“.-!‘.wes of the Commpars.

o

475

“Adapting to
a changing
environment and
new ways of working
to ensure financial
integrity and robust
and effective internal
controls.”

The Committes continues 1o monitor the
certainties orising frorm tese chonges
cmd consider the moruagememt and
mitigotion of these nisks. In addition. the
Cornmittee has received reports on internal
audits for the Group’s tusinesses, together
Wwth severot deep dive sessons including
nrespect of oudits of recently acoui red
DUSITIEsses, GS well as updates on the steps
eing taken to add-ess internal audit
ridings and control issues.

=+ U"

Ccommented it last vear's report thot the
Committee was mindful of the changing
governance landscape and potentiol welght
of artapated rogulation in the near future,
g.ven the numoer of recent Tormal revigws
uraertaken regarding different aspects of
corporote governance ard audit market
=tormn. e particular, we note the UK
government s proposed re‘orms 1o the auds
anG Corporate governance regime which
were pubslished an 31 Moy 2022 ang which
include the creation of a new regulator Tor
the audt ndustry and inceased disclosure
requirements inrespect of internal controis.
in anticipation of these reforms ond under
the supervision of the Committee,
rranageent has started planning “or
fxpﬂfied changes, including preliminary
steps it determining the scope ard cortents
of the Company's audit and gssurance polic

Tre Committee has Glso monitored

‘n tigtives of other reguiatory authorities

o provide investors with consistent,
comparable and reliable information on
cirnate-reigted and ESG matters. We are
supsortive of requilation tnat enciles
rformed investment decisions and supmort
efforte 1o encourage harrmonisation across
recuatony regires.

As Adit Chair ! nave reguiar conversctions
~thothe CFO, Croup internal Audit Director,
Oroug Firancial Zohtrd;en Group Cormrpany
Secretary & —Head o i_eqo ang also the audi
sartnes ot PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
(Pw(C}, our external Q,-d:t:)r

Pl nas now compieted s fifte fol arnual
cycle, ond we vaie the igour and chn\\emqe
of its approach’ Fam ...am,.ad Lreport tha
aga: i there hgve been no signhoant CCHTFO\
deficioncies or Gliounung rrezaanties
reported to the Committes this year. Tne
Comimittes plar s to commence a retender
orocess for the cuait du-ng 202672027 for
the Y28 Arnuo Report and Accounts
order to make any tecessary changes 1o
Sroviders ot ather sew?ce< inatmely and
crderly fashion and te aposint an cud'tor
pefore the start of that yeorr as this is e the
best interests of our sharencldes am
confident trot the AJC 1 Comrimittee hos
carried 0.1 15 duties effective y and 10 0
nigh stancard durng the year, uc.fldw g
indeperzent oversight win the support
of rramoger-e~t and asswurance frorm the
extenal auditors. rocnie with LK
'ﬂgu fations, PwC od‘\e'm 1o a atation

ohicy based on pest 13z ctice and the Grauw
engﬁ]@mem Lartnes vol ssrve g petiod 3
~a longer than five vears, Chiis Burns
secarne the lead oudit Dortner for tre veor
ended 30 Septermnber 218 £- the
appoint~e~t of Fwl and therefore thic vl
be his fing audit.

ook forveard to veeting snarenolders of
the Annua! Genera’ Meetng on 18 Januory
2023 and wil' be happy to respend 1o an.
GuesTions relating 1e tre activties of The
Audit Comrnitiee

Anne Thorburn
Chair of the Audit Committee
21 November 2022

0]

MIIALIBA

yoday 016ainnsg

32UDUIAA0C 31bI0di0n

]
5
o
3
o,
=3
v
-+
-]
r=d
S
3
®
3
[ed
0

UOI3DLLIOUL 13430




AUDIT COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

Audit Committee

The Cornmittee is chaired oy Anne Thorburn
and comprises four independent Non-
Executive Directors. The Committes acts
ndependently of the Executive Directors
ond management. Our merbers have

a range of skills and the Cormmittee as a
whole has experience reievant 1c the Sectors
in which the Group operctes. Anne has
recent and relevant financial experience,
as required by the Code.

The Group Company Secretary & Head of
Legal acts as Secretary 1o the Comimittee.
The Executive Directors also ottend
Committee meetings and sunject motier
axperts are invited to present on spec fic
topics as and when required. The
Commitiee met with the external quditor
during tne year, without the Executive
Directors being present.

Tre Audit Committee confirms that the
Company bas complied with the provisions
of the Competition & Markets Authority
Crder throughout its finoncial year erced
30 September 2022 ond up to the date of
this report.

Financial reporting and significant

financial judgements and estimates

The Comrmittee considered and Goressed.

- the full year and half yea- results, and
troding updaotes for rezemmendaticn
to the Boarg;

- the approprateness of accounting
policies and proctices, as wei' as critica
accounting estimates and key
judgements; and

- whether the Anrual Report, taker as
a whole, is fair, balancea and

~derstandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders
1o assess the Group's cosition andg
performance, business mode and
stralegy.

104 Dizlomg PLC Aneos Repor

The Committee considered the matters set
out below as being significant in the cormtext
of the canselidated financial statements for
the year ended 30 Septernber 2022, These
were discussed and reviewed with
managernerit and the external cuditor; the
Cornmittee then challenged judgements
and sought clarification where necessary.

The Committee considered the judgerments
made in preparing the finoncial staternents,
including the accounting for acguisitions
and associated valuation of intangible
asuwets, the provisicns for excess and
slow-moving inventory, the potential for
impoirrrent of goodwill and the
aporopriateness of the Going Concern
assumption. The Committee also reviewed
the movements in the Group's defined
berefit pension schemes.

Accounting for acquisitions and
disposals

The Committee reviewed the gecounting
tor accuisitions compteted duting the year,
" port culsr te acguistions of R&G Fluid
Power Group and Accuscience. The
acqustions were material for the FY22 audit
and, in accordanze with IFRS 3 {Business
Combnations!, management has
perfrrmmead a full far value exercise for these
Twa acguistions in this year's firancial
staternents, As part of their audit of the
Grouz, the externa: auditor has performmed
WOrk ©™

o) the Purchase Price Allozation (PPAY

bi the opening balance sheet as at the
acquisition date; and

c; audit of any matenal tar value
adiustments arising on the acquesition
batance sheet

The Committee reviewed a~d challenged
rmianzgement's Jssessment, which also
incl.ded consideration of the external cudit
firidings. The Committee co~cluced that
the accounting for these tweo ocquistions
and te other five smailer ocquisitions is
appronriate.

Tre Group complieted twe disposals

the year for combined proceeos of £2im
‘esulting in a net profit on disposal of £7.3m.
The profit on disposal has been presented
within acquisition and other related itemns.

Provisions for excess and slow-

moving inventory

The Committee reviewed the repert of

the CFO that set out the gross balances,
together with any related provision against
the carrying value of inventory. The
Committee reviewed the bases used 1o
value inventory held across the Group; they
also considered the appropriateness of
provisions held against the carrying value
of inventory, hoving regard 1o the age and
volumes of inventory relotive to expected
usage ond considering the actions takan in
response to sueply chain disruptions during
the year and any continued impoct of the
Covid-18 pandermuc.

Following s review, which aiso mct.ded
considerction of the externai audit findings,
the Committee concluded that the
orovisior far excess and slow moving
rvertory 18 appropriate.

Impairment of goodwill

The Committee considerad the carryi-g
value of goodwill and tne assumptions
underlving tne impa rment review. The
judgerments in relation to goodwill
impairment argely relate 1o the
assumptions underlying the calcusations of
the value in use of the cash generating units
({CGUs) meing tested for impairment. Theze
judgernents ore promarily the caicwation of
the discount rates, which have increased
due to risng nsk free rates and the cost of
debt, the ach-evability of managernent's
forecosts in the short to mediurr term
agoinst the bocrdron of o challenging
MQCrOeCOnoMIc envirgnment, residual
imipact of the Covid 19 pandemic and the
selection of the long-term growth rate.
Foilowing the review, which a'se ncluded
corsigerction of the externacl audit fndings
the Comrrittes conciuded that the carryng
carue of the goodwil ecorded is appropriate




Other audit matters

Tre Cormmittee oise considered other less
rraterial matters includng the voluotion of
the Group's oefined benefit schere and the
‘rapact of the key cotuorial assumptions on
the bolonces. The Committee 15 satisfied
with the year end position ard the
assuTptions used.

Imaddition 1c the above, the Commitiee
clso seexs comments from tre auditor on
whether tne Group’s businesses follow
appropricte policies 1o recognise maotenal
streams of revenue, and their audit work
carried out more generaly hos assecsed
whether there is any evidence of
~anagernent override of key internal
contre:s designed to guard against fraud
or rmateral misstatement,

As part of s monitorng of the integrity

of the financial sxaternents, the Cormmittee
revievys whetmer suitabie accounting
poicies nave been adopted and whether
rmgnagermert has made oopropriate
estimates and judgements, and seeks
support from the external cuditor to
assess them.

Going Concern and Viability

The Going Concern and Viability assessment
was prepaced by managerent. [0 preparing
the assessment, managerment carried out
reverse stress testing as weil as scenario
analysis. Two scenarios were cons'dered

- the base case and the downside case. The
base case reflects actuar recent trading ona
takes occount of any further residuat impaoct
of Covid-19. The downside case reflects ©
more significant decline in: trading, adverse
mavernents Im working capital and fower
tnan forecast opergting margin, and is
considered by rmanogement to be a severe
put plousib.e scenarnic.

ne Group has amiple liquidity and covenant
neadroa T in each scenario for both Going
Comcern and Viability Statenent purpeses.
The Audit Committes reviewed the
assurnpt’on: underpinning eack scenario
and 15 satistied with management’s
assesarnent and conciusions N respect of
Going Concern and Viakilty. Further detail
on the assessment of Viability and the
Viokili~y State-nent are set out on pags 8%,
Furtner detoile on Geing Concern can be

found or page |

Engagement of the external auditor

Tne external oud'tor is engaged to express
an opinion an the financial statements of
the Grolo ard of the Company. The audit
includes the consideration of the systems

of imternal financ'al control and the dota
contained it tre fnanciol staterments, to
the extent necessary for exprecsing an audit
apnion on the truth and fairmess of the
finoncial stotements,

Ouring te year, the Commrtee carried out
ar assess—ent of the audit process, led by
tre Chair of the Commities ard assisted by
the CFO. The ossessment focused on certa’n
criteria that the Committes considered 1o
seirrportart factors in demonstrating an
effective audit process, These factars
‘ncluded the gquality of the oudit process
and the ropustness of challerge 12
Tanagement, key audit risks ond hove these
nave been adaressed, the pianning and
exec.ticn of the audit and the roe of
managenent 11 the audit process.

The Commtiee was satished that the

PwC oudit of the Company and Group had
provided @ robust and effective oudit and
an appropriate independent chalienge of
the Group’s semior management. it alsc
supnorted the work of the Committee
trrough clear ond obiective communicatiorn
or developments in financial reporting

and goveriand

The Committee alko oversow the audt
sartner rotation process as Chreis Burns, tre
current iead audit partner, is due toorotate
atrer thvs FY22 year end. A repacernient has
Deen identifed and hos been shagowing the
audit process 1o ensure a 1 ooth handover,
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

Non-audit services

The Committee has approved the Group’s
internal guidelines covering the type of
non-audit work that can be carried out by
the external auditor of the Group, in fight

of the regulation set out in the EU Audit
Directive and Audit Reguiation 2014 (the
Reguloticns) and the Financial Reporting
Council {FRC) Revised Ethical Standard 2019

The Regulations substantially curtail those
non-audit services that can be provided by
the auditor to the Group and in particuiar
prohibits ol tax related services, including
compiiance services as well as general
advice and all consultancy and advisory
services. The Regulations stipulate thot
Board approval is required if eligible
non-oudit services, such as due difigence
and sirmiar assurance services, exceed 30%
of the prior year Group audit fee and the
Compary may not allow elgible non-audit
services 10 exceed 70% of the Group oudit
fee, caicuicted on o rolling three-year basis.

The CFO does ~ot have deegated authority
1o engage the external ouditor to carry oot
any nor-audit work, but must seek approvai
from the Chatr of the Avdit Commvitiee.

Taxation services are 1ot provided by the
Group's current audit firm; a range of
different firmms are uzed for the provision

of tax advice and any assistance with tax
cormpliance mattess generally. I~ addiion,
due diligence exercises an acquisitions and
swmiicr transactions are not prov ded by the
auditor, but are placed with other firms

Tre external auditor is retained 1o carry out
Jssurance services to the Committee in
connection with ‘agreed upon procedures’
an the Group's hoif year consobidated
financial statements (£28,000). The externsl
auditer gise provides access 1o its Viewpoint
tecnnical subscripton service (£1.200).

With the exception of these services,

Pw has net provided any non-audt
services 1o the DOroup or its subsidicries
and has confirmed its independence 1o
the Audit Committee, Further information
is set out in note 25 to the consolidated
fAnancial statements.

The Cormnmitiee assures itself of the
auditor’s independence by receiving reguiar
reports from the external auditor which
provide details of any assignments ard
reloted fees carried out by the auditor in
addition 1o its normal audit work, ard these
are reviewed against the above guidelines.
PwC has reconfirmea its independence for
the current financial yeor.

Risk management and internal control
The principal risks and uncertainties that
are currently judged to have tne mest
significant impact or the Group's long-te
performance are set out in a separcte
section of the Strotegic Report on Interal
Control and Risk Management on pages

80 1o 88

The Committee is responsibe for reviewing
the effectiveness of the Group's systerm o1
internal control. The svstern of 1nte:al
cantrol s designed to manage rather then
eiiminate the risk of failure to achieve
ousiness objectives and can enly provide
regsonable and not cosolute assurance
against material misstaternent or less,

The Group hos the necessary procedures

in piace to ensure that there 's an ongona
process for identitying, evoluating aad
rmanaging the principal risks to the Croup.
These procedures are in line with the FRC ¢
guidance. The Board has established o cleor
crganisotionol structure with define
authority levels.

The doy-to-day running of the Group's
business is delegated to the Executive
Directors of the Group who are sLpoc-ted
by the heads of eoch bosiness Sectzr ond
functional heads of the Grouz.

Key financic! and operat onal meosures
relating 1o revenue, cosh and receivabies
ore repo-ted on a weekly basis. Detailed
managernent accounts and key
performance indicators are prepared
monthiy using a robust proprietary reporting
system to coflect and anglyse financic! dato
ina consistent forrmat. Monthly results are
meaogsured against both budget and half
year referecasts which have been approved
and reviewed by the Boord. All capitat
expenditure apcve predefined amounts
must be supported by a paper prepared by
rmanagerient.

Al fnanagl data s teken directty from eoch
business trial hatarce held intheir local ERFP
systern and reanalysed and formatted in o
separate Group rmanagement reporting
systerr, operated by the Group Finonce
departrment. There is no rekeying of financial
data by the Group businesses to report
raonthly financial results. The Group Finance
aepartment continues to develop the
functicnality of tnis management reporting
sys*orm to provide greater insights into the
financiat and operationa activities of the
Group's businesses.

The Sroup's irteraa gudter reguiaty audits
the bose O3t el Dusness 1o ensure it
s properly reported throughte the Groep
snanagernent «eporting system.

As part of the yeor end Z.ose process, eocn
Dusiness is ~eguired 16 comp'ate a seif-
assessment that evaluates the finoncial
contro environment i their business,
desigred to identity weaknesses in conitrols.
Triese assegsrrants are <ritically reviewed
by the Group internal Audit Director and
evaluoted as part of regular Internat

Audit revievs.

A surmmary for ench hosiness is prepared

for the Augit Comm? I addition, senior

Tanagernent of each busness s reguired

1< contir its odherence with Qroup

accoun Cles processes and systers
i oby means ot o

A Pe—
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The Corrmates has revieved tne
eftectiveness of The Group’s risk
managerment and internal control systems
for the penod from 1 Gotoper 2021 to the
dete of tis resort. Taking intc account the
sratters set out on pages 87 to 88 relating
to principal risks and uncertainties ard the
reoorts Trom: the Group internal Audit
Director, the Board, with the cdvice of the
Corrmittes, i satisfied that the Group nas
in p ace effective risk manogement cnd
internal cont'n systerns.

Internal audit

Tre Grouo maimtaine aninternal audit
department whizh reports directly to both
the CFO and Cnar o the Audit Committee.
Tne deportmer comprises a Group Internal
Audt Directer and o Group I~ternal Auditor
baosea at the Group's offices in Londor.

Im January 2022, the Groug Imernal Audit
Director oreserted s avdit plan for the
vear 1o the Commrittee *or its approvol
Increas gy dunmig the year, internai cudit
undertook audits in perscn as travel
restrictions were ntted in o number of key
Junisdictiors, The departrrent continued to
effective y rely on remote vis'ts with the use
of apprepriate communication technology
where site visits were not pozsibie.

Tre scope of work carrieg out by internal
oudit generaily “ocuses or the internai
financial, operatona and compliance
contrels operatng wthin each business,
neiuding r.sk management activities ono
ous’nese process improvements, Forma!
written renorts are prepared on the results
of each internal aucit visit thot set oLt
Ierna’ contro weck nesses/risks identified
during their work, together waitn
recornmandoTicns 1o improve the intermnal
cortrol ervironment and mitigate these
weaknesses Tis«s. These reports are timely
and reguarty discussed with serior
managerent wthin the Group, The reporis
are gise shared w'th the external auditore.

At the end of the financol year, the Group
Internal Audit Director formally reporte 1o
the Comrmnittee on the results of the internai
aadit work caried out by his departrment
during the year. The Committee reviews
rmanagemert’s responses to matters raised,
inciuding the time taken to resoive such
rmatters. Updated reports on progress
agairst the plan are provided at reguiar
intervais and the Audit Char alse meets
separately with the Group Internal Audit
Director ot least twice @ year 1o review some
of the department’s reports and discuss
their findirgs.

There were no significant or high-risk
maotters identified in the ‘nternal audits
undertoken during the current financial
year. Several recommengations were again
made this yecr 12 the businesses in regard
to impiementing adequote and effective
internal controls and procedures aimed

at improving existing processes sround
cybarsecurity, inveniory management

and procuremrent,

The Committee conducted the annual
review of the effectiveness of the internal
oudit department, including its audit plan,
generai performance and relationship with
the externat acditors. Based onits review,
the Committee was satisfied with the
effectiveness of the Group's internal audit
function, specifically that the internal audit
department ‘s sufficiently independent of
executive management and has sufficient
resources ard scope thot is appropriate for
the size and nature of the Group.

Whistleblowing

The Committee alse manitors the adequacy
of tne Group's whistleb-owing policy, which
arovides the ramewaork to encourage and
give ermployees confidence to biow the
whistle’ g~d report rrequiarities, The oalicy,
togetner witn hotline pesters, are ploced on
site natizenoards across the Group.
Emipoyees are encouraged 1o roise concerms
via the confidential rmuitiingual hotline,
which is monagec by an ‘ndependent
externa corrpany and is availakle 247

365 days o yecr.

All reports are orovided 1o the Group
Cornpany Secretary & Head of Legar for
review, 10 ensure that they are aopropnately
investigoted - with the support of interna
cudit and externa resource, if reau’red.
Most mistters reported through the
whistleblowing service relate to persunnel/
HR matters and, whie these are not areas
*or review by the Committee, such matters
are duly investigated 'n the same manner
as ary cther issue raised.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Member Meetings ettended

4/4

David Lowden
{Chair)

Anne Thorburn 5/5

Andy Smith 5/5

Geraldine Huse 5/5
4/5

Dean Finch

John Nicholos“ 171

The role of the Committee

The Nomination Commmittee reviews the
composition of the Board and principal
Committees, considering skilfs, knowledge,
experience and diversity requirements before
rnakirg appropriate recammendations 1o
the Board regarding any changes. It also
rmarages succession plenning for Directors
and the Group Company Secretory and
oversees succession plenning for senior
leadership across the Group.

Terms of reference can be found on
our website at www.diplomaplc.com

108 Diploma PLC Annual Report 2022

Key matters discussed

- Recriitrment of a Chief Finoncial Officer
and brocder succession planning for
Chairs of Audit and Rernuneration
Commit tee.
Consideration of ¢ detaifed shills,
experience and diversity rmatrix that
scught to identify recruitment pricrities
based oridertified gaps, industry
e tatiens and good practice.
Focilitating o more diverse list of potential
cardidatzs ahead of the search for twe
Non-Executive Directors by setting clear
objectives for the external search
constiltants and ensuring o clear
articulatior of the compainy's ongoing
commitment Lo improving diversity in role
specifications.
Consideration of the contribbutions ars
effectiveneass of the Nan-Exec_tiw
Directors seeking re-aloctior ot (he 20022
Annual Genera' Meetirg, prioe to g’
recormrmeradatiors te the B
shareholders {5 irrmeles e

sy |
P




Dear Shareholder,

fom pleased to set out below the report on
the activities of The Nomiration Comimities
during tne year.

Tre Board is of the view that it s essential
to have an approcriote mix of experence,
expertise, diversity and independence. Such
diverse attributes enable the Board as o
whole to previde inforrmed opinions and
adwvice on strategy and relevant topics,
therety discharging its duty of oversignt.
Appointments to the Board are made
following consideration of the experience
and expertise of existing Directors, any
reguired skill sets or competencies, ond the
strategic regu’rements of the Group. During
2022, the composition of the Board changed
sightly, reflecting' (i} Jahn Nicholas
stepoing dewn frorm the Board and 1 the
departure of Barbara Gibbes.

Afundamrertoi respensitility of the
Committes is to ensure plans are in p.oce
for orderly succession 1o the Board, os we-
as our Oroup Conpany Secretary and senor
rmanagement positions, and the Cammittee
debates tnese regularly. The main focus of
the Committee during this past year nas
been on Board succession plansing,
ncluding the appointment of aur aew Crief
Financicl Officer and the search for the
Chairs of the Audit and Rermuneration
Committees to ensure these positions are
appointed in time for an orderly handaver,
The Commuttes continually manttors the
nalarce on the Board to ensure we have the
nignt compination of skills, experience and
krow edge corsistent with the long-termm
strategy of the Company. This allows us 1o
iaentify where further focus is needed in the
coming yeors and peyond.

We are rindful of the discussions areund
improving diversity and inclusion, together
with The targets set by the Harmptaor-
Alerander Review ond the Parker Review.
Fuowing the departure of Barbara Gibbes
a1 the erd of the financial year, two out of
sever Directors (28.57%%) are women, t s
the Board’s airm to meet the targets set by
Hurmpton-Alexander and Parker reviews,
denfing with gender and ethric diversity
respect vely, which is feasible given curremt
SLCCESSION Bians.

]
D

Tre Board wil’ maintain oversight of the
range ot octivities the Grour is pursuing
aimen ot increasing the diversity of our
workforce - inciuding the executive pipeline
thaot is essentiol for Exective Director
seccession planning, We nave written
esewhere {see page 40) about cur Group-
wide gopproeacn to diversity and inclusion.
whitch emanates frore the Board and
impacts the approach of the Nomination
Comrittee.

“Ensuring the right mix
of skills and
experience to deliver
long-term value for
our stakeholders.”

Thie FRC's guidance on toord effectiveness
recognises a breadth of diversty thot goes
beyond lust gender and race, and includes
persona’ attributes includ'ng inwllect,
critical assessment, judgement, ceurage,
nonesty and tact; ond the aciity 1o I'sten
and forge “e'ationsmips and develop trust,
This ensures that a board is not comprisec
of like-rminded ind viouals. The Committee
agrees that diversity s vital when reviewing
the cormposition of the Board and cetting
the criteria for the recruitrment of new
appcintees, 2longside succession plannng
activities. Externai search consultonts are
expected to maoke every effert to put
forward diverse candidates for new Board
positions. Whilst appointments will continue
To be miade on rrerit and against obhective
critera, 't rermnan: the Committes’s
irtention that the diversity on the Board
vl cortinue to incregse cver tme,

The Committes has aisc mairtained its
‘ocus on the erecutive surcess on pipeline
and senior management succession o'ans
within the Group, reflecting 1 resporsinility
TG BNSJre Apprapriate plans are it place.

David Lowden

Chair of the Board and Nomination
Committee

21 November 2022
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NOMINATION CCMMITTEE
CONTINUED

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is chaired by
David Lowden, Board Chair. The Committee
comprises the Non-Executive Directors and
meets as necessary to discharge its
responsibiitties.

The Group Company Secretary acts as
Secretary to the Committee.

The Committee reviews the cormposition

of the Board and principal Committees,
considering skills, knowledge, experience
and diversity requirements nefore making
appropriate recommendations to the Board
regarding any changes. It alse rmanages
succession planning for Directors and the
Group Company Secretary, and oversees
succession planning for senior leadership
across the Group

The Committee's role and responsibilities ore
set out in its Terrms of Reference, which were
reviewed during the vear and aporoved by
the Board.

Induction and professional development
The Chair, assisted by the Group Company
Secretary, is responsibie for ensuting that
there is a property constructed and timely
induction for new Directors upon joining the
Board. Upon oppontment, ali new Directors
are provided with o cormprehensive
induction, where they meet wit= key
rmembers of management and farmiliarise
therrselves with all core aspects of the
Group, its businesses and the markets in
which it operates.

Directors are encouraged, wherever
possinle, 1o visit the Group's sites so thot
they can get a better understonding of
the busimess and interact with empioyees
While travei was restricted and complex
during the Covid-1% pondermic, site visits

by individua! Directors {and the Board as

a whole) have resumed and allowed
Directars to see Dipiema’s safety ond
sustainabi ty processes, 1o tak with ocal
management ana workforces ard 19 Jssess
hiow effectively Dipinrra’s culture is
cormrmunicoted and embedded at o' levels,

The Chair also has the respensibility of
ensuring that Directors receive training on
a comtinual pasis in support ot their ongeing
development. This training is provided by
way of rechnical updates, reparts and
brietings prepared for Board -meetings.
Directors have full access to our corporate
advisors as well as a regular and
comprehensive supply of financial,
operational, strategic and regulatory
information to help thermn discharge therr
rasponsibilities.

During the year, the Board heid a strategy
“eview tession to confirme the Company’s
strotegic goais as well as eceiving detciled
updates on aperations and support
functicns.

[ T v

Step 1

The Committee
reviews and
approves an
outline brief and
role specification
and appoints a
search agent to
facilitote the search

na

Dipioma PLE Anr ol R

Process for Board appointments

Creme e

Step 2

A Committee
member

discusses the
spectfication with
the independent
search agent, who
prepares an initial
longlist of
candidates

esort 2022

Step 3

The Committee
then defines o
shortlist of
candidates ond
we hold interviews

Step 4

The Comittee
mackes a
recommendation
to the Board for its
consideration

Step 5

Following Board
approval the
appointment is
announced in line
with the
requirernents of the
FCA's Listing Rules
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Induction of our new Chair
. : ooz werled Boare Thatr
T St

A sty s The
moar st Baklgbes are

Calendar of activities
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November 2021 January 2022 March 2022 April 2022

Meeting ail Beard Handover with Visit to Windy Chair Q&A
colleagues, both outgoing Chair City Wire in published in the
individually and Chicago, and Purple Portal, the
collectively Hercules Group's newsletter
Aftermarket in
Meeting Group Louisville in the USA
heads of functions
Visit to Shoal Group,
IS Group and
Clarendon in
the UK
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

Onboarding processes

The decentralised nature of the Group has
always made induction processes compiex.
The pondernic led us tc reconsider how
these processes can be conducted

effect vely. Custormarily there would have
been face-to-face meetings with key
executives and rranagemient, introductions
to their direct reports, one-to-ones folowing
the initial meetings, and site visits arranged
to key businesses. Now parts of the
induction plan are conducted via video calls;
particularly where key pecple are located
outside of Europe. This permits Directors te
have considerably greater exposure to the
various businesses and personne! and we
are pieasea thot we can ance again
encourage Directors to visit our businesses
and oppreciate our culture ond colleagues in
person as well os continuing to develop their
unde: standing of each business,

Length of tenure

Succession planning

The Cornmittee formally reviews succession
planning for the Board, Group Company
Secretary and Head of Legal, and senior
management ot least once each vear,
taking into account the challenges and
opportunities facing the Group and the
backgreund, skills and expertise thaot will be
required by the Group in the “uture. During
2022, following the oppointment of the new
Board Chair, the Committee undertook o
rmore thorough analysis of the Board's
competencies. The Committee aiso
considered how the Board would be reguired
to evolve tc be fit for the future, as well as
any potential gaps that may need 1o be
filled through succession or training.

The CEO manages the development of
succession plans for executive
rmanagement, and these are overseen by
the Commuttee. The CEC ond Group HR
Drrector presented a succession pianning
update to the Board in January 2022

The Cormmittee 1s aware of the importance
of idertitying critical roles within te
businesses 1o ensure we retain and mativate
key talent and have the necessary skills for
the future. Overall, 't was ciear that we have
g good executive and management
SLCCESSON pianning process and,
importantly, succession is being actively
managed by the Executive tear to achieve
the desired long: termr outcomes.

The standard term for Non-Executive
Directors is three years. They normaliy serve
for a maximum o nine years, which is split
across three terms of three years each. Al
Directors are subiject to annual re eiection.
With onty specific exceptions that may be
necessary to ensure Board continuity,
Non-ExecLtive Directors shal' not stand for
re-e.echion a‘ter they have served for the
period of their ndepenaence, os deterrmined
by applcakle LK standards, of nine yea-s.

201 2016

2022 2023 2024,

2025 20ze 2027 2029 203

Cr

2028

Dovig Lowden

Andy Srnith’

Anne Thorborm'
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Board evoluation

The Board conducts an annual evaluaticn of its performance and that of its committees and, in accordance with good practice, engoages
an independent third-party fodilitater to ossist ir this process every three years. For tne year ended 30 Septermber 2022, the evauation of

the Board as a whoie and of its cormnmittees wos undertacen irternaily, led by the Board Chair. Boord members completed guestionnaires
regarding the operation and effectiveness of the Boord and its cornmittees. Findings were collated by the Group Company Secretary and
the Boord Cha'r discussed the concluzions and recemmendotions separately with each Director.

The performance of the Non-Executive Directors was reviewed by the Board Chair. The performance of the Executive Directors was
reviewed by the Board Chair and the Non-Executive Directors and the resuits of the 2022 evaluotion process were considered by the Board,
The conciusion wos that the Boord continued to function well ond the onboarding of the Boord haa been well recelved, resuting in
improvernent to Board processas and workplans. Zrectors operated in an atmosphere of open and constructive debate with a good
breadth of s«lils, experience, and viewpoirts. Folowing the evsluation, the below recommendations were mizde:

Recommendation

Action

Consider the diversity of the Board, frov both a gende- and
ethnicity standpcint.,

Nomination Committee to address diversity requirements n
succession planning and during the Non-Executive Director

recruitment process.

Consider E5Q skillsets during the Nan-Executive Directer recruitment
process, creation of an ESG Comimitiee as wel as enho~ced focus on
climate- «elated financial risks.

Cortinue to challerige a~d suppot or the progress of DVR aotions,

Board papers to include executive summaries to bring focus to
discussions, and Sector presentations to the Board to include key
indicators of customer and supplier performance

improve intormation shared with the Boord 12 entance visibiity o
certan topics a~d improve decisicn-rmaking.

The Company expects o vpdate sharenasders on the progress made in relation to the maotres identified above in its 2023 Annua! Report.

Key areas for development
The below recomrnendations were vade foilowing tre 2027 external Boars performmance evaluation.

Recommendation Action

MNomination Comimittee reviewed the composition of the Boordg
and incorporated this into succession plaanmng.

Consider increasing the size of the Boarc and bringing 'n turther
skills relevant to Digora s size ond operations.

Additional sessions included as port of annual calendar as we't as
bespohke sessions from odvisors as required.

Board training progromrrme to be evolved,

Increased number of site visits, with Non-Executive Directars
conducting thess individually on occasion and provid'ng feedback
to the Board

Errployee engagement 1o be reviewsd.

Board dinner in the evening prios to meetings indludsd to cover
specific areas of forus or concern ond permrit further isforma
zngagement with key management.

Board scredue 1o be revie wed,

jioday o1bayong
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Meetings attended
&6/6

Member
Andy Smith (Chair)

Anne Thorburn

&/6
6/6
6/6

David Lowden

Geraldine Huse

Dea n?r{ch

John Nicholas N

The role of the Committee

The Committee, on behalf of the Board,
agrees all aspects of the remuneration

of the Executive Directors. It agrees the
strategy, direction, and palicy framewaork
for the remuneration of the senior
cxecutives whao have significant influence
over the Group's ability 1o meet its strategic
ohjertives. The Committze also uvearsees

all werkforcs rermureration policies.

Terms of reference can be found on
our website at www.diplomaplc.com

114  Diploma PLC Annual Report 2022

&/6

Key matters discussed

- Approved Remuneration Cormmittes waork
programme for 2022,
Reviewed the AGM 2022 votes on the 2021
Rermuneration Committee Report
Reviewed and proposed the rew
Directors’ Remuneration Policy, and az o
result, proposed amendments to the rules
of the Bigloma PLC 2020 PSP
Approved the service cortract for the
new CFO.
Approved annual performance borus
targets and the subsequent bonus awards
for 2022,
Approved new Performonce Share Plan
(PSP) aveards for Executive Directars and
Groups senior management.
Confirmed the vesting percentages far
the PSP awards made in Decermnber 2019,
which crystallised in 202
Reviewed Erxecutive Directors’ salaries,
pensions, and benefits,
Reviewed the fees of the Chair and
Non-Executive Directors.
Reviewed rermuneration framework *-
Executive Team and senior manan:
in the operating businesses.
Reviewsd workforce remuneraticn
framework.
Approved the 2022 Remuneratic,”
Committee Report,




Dear Shareholder

As Crair of the Bosrd Remuneration
Cornrr'ttee [Committee:, fam pleased 1o
present our Directors’ Remuneratos Report
{DRR} for the year ended 30 Septermber
2027 end our revised Rermunaration Poiicy
for which shareholder apgroval wil be
sought at the Janwary 2023 AGM.

Context and approach to remuneration
Our peopte lle at the heart of our success.
As cur business grows and becormes more
camplex, our peopie, tearms and
2TGUNISATIcn MUsST grow with . It s vite!
that we have tne right calibre of peopie and
that we incentivise excellent performance
and reward thern wher they do. On page
18, Dipiomc’s approach 1o remuneration

s lhustrated showing how strategy,
weformance and reward align. Ina
decentralised Gioup, we wok hard 1o
balance alignment with local accountabiity
24 agifty. Our reward paoicies ana
practices have supported the growth of the
business wel' over the years, Durng This
policy period, our performeance has been
excellent and cu- talerted management
tearn nave doubled the size of the business.

“Reinforcing alignment
of strategy and
reward, 2022 was
a very strong year
of performance,
strategic execution
and consequently
reward. Long
term growth and
shareholder returns
are excellent.

Our plans remain
ambitious and we are
pleased to set out our
Remuneration Policy
for the next phase

of growth.”

N ey ST Ay o) Rt
oiomma U Ao Reponet

s aganst tus backdrep that we have
considered cur remuneration policy for te
upcoming three yaaors.,

2022 performance and pay

The Diglarma team bins delivered ancther
vear of srrong financial results, adding to
the GroLp's iong-term track ~ecord of
excellent business performance and
snareholder returns. Organic growth has
beer driven by revenue initiatives, positive
demand, and pric'ng. Alongside tris,
implementation of our strategy cont'nues
apace with the acquisition of new
busnesses 10 oring new capabilities ond

opportanties 1o drive future organic growth,

Witn regards to scaling, it hos been a year
of excellent progress bullding infrastructire
for scale, developing the target operatng
rnedel, and evolving the structures,
capabiity ond culture of the Groug.

Excelert delivery against our strategic
priorities of growth, scaling and Delivering
Vaiue Responsiply have resulted ir strong
performance {shown in table on poge 1195
Adjusted operating profit (+29%¢}, reported
revende (+22%) and free cash (+11%)

al exceeded onnucl bonus targets (cn poge
130), resuiting in a fuli bonus poyvment f
125% of solary for both Johnny Thomzon
ang Barbaro Gibbes.

Qur ‘ong-terme performance contnues 1o
create excellent smareholder returas Gur
three-year compound annual growth rate
(CAGR;} for adiusted earnings per share
(EPSY 12 19%. This exceeds the performance
target maxomum of 4%, ond the return

on adjusted trading copital ermployed
[ROATCE) is 17.3% meaning that tne
underpin opplying to our PSP s in line wth
the Group’s financial medel and meets the
Boord's expectation Cur relative three-year
tota’ sharehalder return (TSR] perfornance
s inthe $1st percentile of =TSE 250
cormnoanies lexctuding fingndial services gnd
mvest ment Trusts), ranking 15 out of 158

companes. Based on thase excellent resuits,

the Performance Share Pian (PSP) (PSP
{(20°9Y) has vested ot maxirmum for Joh-ny
Thomisorn and Barborn Sibhes, as well as ab
ather PSP participents.

Johnry Tnomeen's total compensation
‘or 2022 ishown in the Single Figure tabie
o page 129) is £3.8 {2027 £5%my). The
difference versus lost yea™ 18 main'y due
1o lower snare price opprecigtion.

1 line with the Code, the Committee
reviewed ndivicual Directors’ incentive
plan cutcomes and overal remuneraticn
conside'ng the Grousp's underlying
serformance. We have net made any
odjustrments to our remuneration schermes
as a result of Covid, ~c furlough support
wis taken, and ne discretional adjustments
“gve peen apolied 1o outcomes.
Accordingly. the Committee is satistied
1ot the Incentive pian outcomes and the
wtal remuneration received by Execltive
Directore in respect of the year ended

30 Sepremoer 2027 are consistent with the
ievels of company performonce delivered
and that the Rermnuneration Policy is
opercting as intended

Appointment of new CFO

Crris Dovies joined Diplerre 02 CFO on

VP Novenber 2022 after Barbara Oibbes

eft the Comoany on 30 Septemnber 2022,
Hoving piaved animportant reie in helping
te steer Dicthma through the pandemic and
: stronc foundations for the future,
e Committes deter—ined to treat Borba-a
25 2 goo iecver ana her remuneration
arrangerrents on departure were in
accordunoe with the Remaneration Policy
and pion rues Hes exit arnogngerments gte
set out on page 126

W arpointed CUrris foliowing a torough
process whic cons'derec internot and
externa condidotes. Diploma was Barba-a's
tiret FTO0 Board apooietment and her

ae wvas set accordingly. Chris’ package
5 oorrmens.tate veth his experence as an
estabusted CFO with an excailet track
‘ecord ndecentaied, senvica-ed,

st ol orgarmisations, [t eoflects the
noredung wze and comolerity of Dinlormo

and the ot sLppert ne will crovide

ke det suateqy, dusness

pertormorce and a rolust Hhancal contod

T ne rignt balanoe

4 reflects ¢ fair

¢ oF Chines packoge are
nsittert with our

framevs

O
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

the remuneration foregone including the
nature, vesting dates and performance
requirements ottached to that
rermuneration and payments will not exceed
the expected volue being forfeited. Exact
amounts will be finaiised following the
publicotion of nis previous ermnployer’s results
and will be disclosed in next year's DRR.

Remuneration in the workforce

The skill and dedication of Diplorna’s
colleagues lie at the heart of our success.
The Group cchieved outstanding levels of
colleague engagement again this year
[mare inforrnation on page 56 1o 37).
Remuneration in Diploma provides a careful
balance that enabes local decision-raking
i lime with our decertralised business
roodel, whilst ensuring guidance and
governance fron the Group, and incuding
areview of pay equity, which is one of the
Group's BSO priorities,

The CEO pay ratio for 2072 {detal! on page
135 hes reduced from 1807 tc 1291, The
princpal reason for the reduction is lower
share price oppreciation from market
~ovements. 1he median pay for UK
colleogues hos rernained at a similar level
£25.074 2021: £29,0364), witn the addition
of ca 400 new ermpioyees from UK
arguisticns. f we exllude emgloyees who
icined through acausitions, the median
vy for the UK wonkforce nos increased
rearginally 1o 2550

oid guidonce to the
ccusej 7 looaking otfter

. The first pricrity was focusing on
affected by inflationary pressu-es
a trom the macro- ervironment,
rctedin wg eneiqy prices and other risi ng

1g. For the first ime the Qroup's
aovernance .hd‘ ned onindependent review
of er paid rolee (<£40k per
leagues received ar
Hgher tnan the

TRl Uf

.d ieal
e incre

QCrag

Sorsenior eanets, Th

rationale for increasing
dtien of increasing
business and
oxtm aligned Lo

L WVE rerncin CONSTIoUs
Lretin o toeent in higr
ter - ational morkets.

[duiay "')LT

The 2022 overal! base salary increase across
the Group is 7% for the warkforce (2021,
4%, including senior managers. The
management team and Cornmittee will
continue to review total compensation
procctively in order to ensure our wider
workforce is fairty rewarded. The Committee
considers workforce perspectives when
setting Remuneration Policy, Executive
Director compensction and oversesing
senior management compensation
frameworks.

Remuneration policy review

The Cormmittee completed
corrprehensive policy review in 2022, The
review process is set out on page 120 and
covered o number of key foctors.

The Group has increased considerably in size
and complexity in this policy netiod {ghown
in the diagram on page 120). Since the
appointment of our CEQ in 2017, the Group
has doubled in size from a combination of
strong crganic growth, strategic executicn
and the acquisition of 25 strategically
important businesses. Sharehclders ngve
benefited and Dislerma has grown from
FTSE 185 1o FTSE 11 over the period and the
Greup's plans iemain amibitious. Desgnimg
our pf)‘wy to recognise the incieased
imilities to attract, retam and
"wcem‘t:v se managernant for the next phase
ot growth was o top prionty.

ESGis incraasingly important to all our
stakenclders and we wish to ntrodace
targets intc our varabie pay. Ensuring that
honus rmeasures are rigorous, specific,
stretcning ond go beyond the ‘day job' iz
anessential principle of reward in Diploma.

Work is underway to develop Delivering
Vdaiue Responsibly as port of the strategy
and we have set some non-financial KPls
and targets {shown on page 59} but more
time s needed to oscure tnese measures
pefore we can introduce them inte variable
pay. Accerd-ngly, our croposed poticy has
Hexigility to int-oduce E505 metrics during
this oohicy peried {at on appropriate point).

Within the wider stakehoider content,

we congidered how we reward our whole
workforce, as covered earlier. The senior
management tearm engages frequently
with employees, either o~ g business-wide
basis or in the context of smatler focus
groups, to sclicit feedback generally on

a wide range of matters, including
remuneration. Feedback is passed to the
Cornmittee vig the Lxecutive team ond is
taken into account by the Committee when
setting Executive Directors’ Rermuneration
Policy. Additicnaliy, we paid attention 1o
how governance is evoving and have made
a numbe” of enhancements in our “ew
policy which are set cut on poge 121
inciuding increasing minimure sharehaiding
reguiremeris (MY R, ond post cessation
shareholding reguirerments.

The last step in The nolicy revievs was 1o
review relevant market doetat
lout not drive; tne Comnmittee's
considerstions, idata wverview is set oLt on
page 120}, The Currmtiee s aware of, and
chares, snareholder concerns "egarding the
risk of over relionce anb nehmarking. The
Coammittes's driver for ary i d reveard
i greater responsbility or comzlerity in the
eievant roie and to l@\.C‘HﬂWL‘ greater
(,Opobmty mthe individeal 1 g grovang,
very successfu Dusiness soch as ours, we
Gre CogUisant of retaining oLt kev Leopee
a5 Tney gam easing rmarkel Lot frorm
their proven capacilities and trock rezord,
inths regard, market dota does provide
o usefu ‘sense-cheo,

From the multipie steps of the review,
the Committes comcluded thers wii
a compeiing coss To Increase 1ot
corepensotion potential for our Erecutive
Directors. The Cornrritiee belewe
MCorporcting the incresse into the PSP 1o
incentivise iong ter nerformarnce best
aligns performance delvery strotegic
cxecution ard snaren
WE BrOpOse 10 InIease
award petertio o
B00Y, ot s




Shareholder consultation on proposed
changes

Our 2021 DRR was supported with 933 of
vetes in favour. During 2022, we consuitad
extensively on our policy and DIR 2002
implermentation and engaged with 27 of our
largest shareholders, representing cround
&5% of our reqgister, as well os the key oroxy
agencies. The quality of the interacriors
wae excellent, and we appreciate the
engagemnent and vaitable feedback. Trere
was o ronge of views and preferences
expressed, but we were pleased that the
overall weight of opinion was strongy
supportive.

Remuneration for 2023 - implementation
Fixed pay:

As disclosed previously, Johnay Thomso-'e
cash aliowance inliew of censiaon
coentribation will reduce 1o 4% of bas'c pay
fromm 1 JanLary 2023 1o align with the
majority of the UK workforee

Tre Comm'ttee considered Johnny
Thomson's salary as part of the review. The
Comrmittee is aware that high inflotion s
not a solid rotionale for increosing executive
pay. The Committee consigered the
ircreased size ond complexity of the Grouz
{doubled in size as shown in te diogram,
orpoge 120}, and Johnny's va ue a: a
high-oerforrming CED, and concluded that
Q DOse pay increase was required oo part

of increasing his total cormpensation
opportunity. Shareholders asked us 1¢
review the increase in the context of
intended wider workfarce pay incregsas the
MGCro-economic ervironment, infationary
pressures faced by our coleagies and the
overall quantum of CEO rew

Having taken these views on board we
agreed an increase 1o his pay of &%z, wrich
rerraing below the increase awarded 1o our
wider workforce gt 7%, We be ieve th e
provides the right nalance wihnthe
Cormpary and will deitver ¢ comip:
CED package,

Annual bonus:
Thie 2023 annuat performance ponus o

cn the Board approved &
borus for the CEOQ and CF0 v lre
unchangad at 125% of cass saiary

PR

PSP:

Asising fromn the compelling case to increase
total compensation for the CEO, the
Committee plans to implement the new
PSP snaxinmum this vear for the CEQ, subject
to sharenolder approval of the policy.
Jonnny Thomson will receive a PSP award
ot 300% of buse salary (PSP 2022). Chris
Davies will receive a PSP award of 200%

of base salary (PSP 2022; {which wifl be
pro-rated based on hirn waorking eleven
months of the year).

A number of shareholders have expressed
a preference for EPS over TSR (provided the
ROATCE underpin remains), and in our
consultat or we discussed increasing the
weighting of three-year CAGR odjusted EPS
growth 1o /5% of the total award (from
0%, with 25% (previcusly 50%) rermaining
on TSR relative to the FTSE 250 {excluding
Hnaneas services and investment trusts)

As the majority of shareholders were
s.pportive, we Intend to progress with this
change Tor PSP (2022). We will retain the
RCOATCE underpin, recognising this is
critically impartant to sharehclders.

During consultation shareholders asked
that we ensure targets are appropriately
strefching g'ven the greater quantum of
reward proposed. The Committee
recognises that increased quanturn of
reward snouid be accompanied by
appropriatety high levels of performance
delivery. In setting targets. we seek to ensure
that the focus on organic grewth is strong,
e g.aity of acguisitions remains high and
tnat the nght rise appetite is mainteined. in
response to feedback, we intend to increase
EPS gravsth reguired for maxir-umn payout
under the PSP from 12% to 15% for the
avad in 2022, Tre minimum threshotd wilt
rermain ot 5%, This provides the right degree
of stretch ombit'on for Diptoma at this t'me
conadening the organic growth
spportunities, the acgaisition ipeline ond
the prevalent marxet conditions. The Board
wl raintain oversight of ROATCE, We will
continge to review the level of stretch
annua'y tor each PSP grant oyaie

Non-Executive Directors and Committee
evaluction

John Nicholas retired as Chair of the Board
in Janua-y 2022 and was succeeded by
David towden, David joined the Board as
Non-Excout've Director and Charr designate
on 39 October 2021, Non-Executive Director
fees were reviewed using equivalent inputs
and increnses are shown on page 133.

The Committes’s perforrmance was
assessed as part of the annual Board
evaluation. | am pleased to report that
the Committee s regarded as operating
effectively and that the Board takes
reassirarce from the quality of the
Committea’s work,

Conclusion

Iy ciosing | would orice agan ke to thark
shareholders for their engagerent over this
ast yeor, We will maintoin o ciose dialogue
as we seek to deiiver a competitive,
motivating pay framewerk that s tghty
chignea to sharehalder experience whilst
~naintcining good governance standards,
vtrust you find this repaort useful and look
forward to rece ving your support at the
AGM 0118 January 2023,

Andy Smith
Chair of the Rermuneration Committee
21 November 2022

yioday 3168310135
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REMUNERATION AT A GLANCE:
DIPLOMA'S APPROACH TO REMUNERATION

Set out below is an illustration of how
remuneration aligns to strategy and how it
cascades in our decentralised business model

Our Purpose: Diploma’s purpose is to consistently deliver value and reward our stakeholders by
making a positive difference to our colleagues, our customers and suppliers and our communities.

Diploma’s Strategy: build high-quality, scalable businesses for organic growth

Strategic pillar Short term incentive: Long term incentive: Remuneration
Annual Bonus Performance Share Plan Principles

O;_)erc_Jth profit; N EPS (ROATCE underpir): Eemunemtﬁot” olignej to .
usiness strategy and promoting
1: 50% 75% the long-term success of the
GROWTH e . Company.
Reverue: Relotive TSR: Supporting creation of

o o long-term shareholder value.
25 /O 25% Providing an appropriate balance

between remuneration elements
which are transparent, stretching

5. Free cash:
SCALING 25%

and rigorously opplied.
Previding o bolance between
immediate and deferred
remuneration and encouraging
a high performance culture.

3: Non-financial KPis and targets in place, flexibility to
DELIVERING VALUE introduce DVR (ESG) metrics into remuneration included
RESPONSIBLY in the Policy

CASCADE OF REMUNERATION IN OUR DECENTRALISED BUSINESS:

- Rermuneration Policy: updated Policy presented to shareholders for voting at AGM in January 2023;
implementotion reviewed annually.
EXECUTIVE - Emphasis on pay for perforrmance and alignment with shareholders on sustainable long-term
DIRECTORS performance: Group Annual Bonus and PSP measured on a balanced set of defined financial
measures linked to strategy.

- Set locally by referring to Group framework which aligns metrics, targets and quantum for
different types of role. Group governance (including pay equity).
- Reviewed annually.
: - Emphasis on pay for perfermance. Aligned variable pay, using a biend of Group and local
LEADERSHIP performance targets.
ROLES - Wider participation in Group PSP,

- Set locally, Group/Sector governance.
- Reviewed annually.

- Fair and competitive in local market.
WORKFORCE - Linked to colleogue value proposition.




Business Performance 2022 Annuail Report of Remuneration

Strategic cescution

Perinrrno-ce Reward

Growth

Reveroe divorsification: revenes nitiatives
aelverirg strong growth ir stractarally
grovedry e rearaet s, furthe

Core cleen TErTrIIT e Qg

orodocd ranges,

RS A 1o o
S137m irvested in seves strategically

Imiportart: Goguisitiors,

Cisciplined sortrodic developrent: dis

cibertek oo al-erviroscisnees

Scalina

SEIT DT T i CBaildirg the

DVR

Cavell=nt progress ara anreleratoes
rmEnt L an s smbed DV in
cowrercial stratenies ar e ations
Lo F pisre Coansistent ord rodsest
reporting.

Targets s for the First tirs,

Adjusted operating profit MGXim um bonus
payable

+29%

Revenue

[s)
+15% Maximum vesting

Free cash flow
o on PSP

Adjusted EPS
19%
f2 e LAGR)

ROATCE:

17.5%

Refative TSR:
percentile rank

1%
(3 yexr performancs!

oalnt index Flexibility to introduce
(zw;o..»‘fs::.-,.) DVR metrics
Scope 1& 2 emissions In remuneration

10,615 tonnes CO. e included in Policy.

thaseling year)

Waste to landfill

60%

(Hrat year of mezsarerie ot

2022 Broader Reward Priorities

Goal

Support lower ;63d colleagues most
affected by the cost of living crisis

Action

Wage increase for colleagues paid less than £40k of 7.5%,
which is higher than the overall workforce increase.

Retain talent in the competitive
talent market

Wage increase for the workforce of 7% (2021: 4%).
Review of variable pay structures and quantum.

Incentivise brilliant leaders on Iong—te.rm success PSP participation increased to ca. 50 pu}'t‘icipunts {2021: ca. 35

NY  Ciploma PLC Annual Report 2022

participants, 2020: ca. 15 participants).
To keep pace with the growing Group variable pay structures
and quantum reviewed, high pay for high performance,
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REMUNERATION POLICY

2022 Remuneration Policy Review - process

Changes to Remunerqtlon Pollcy and its |mplementatlon

1. Excellent performance and increased scale and complexi{y 2. Wider stakeholder context

of the Group: moved from FTSE ca. 185 to FTSE ca. 111 considered during Policy review:
Adjusted earnings per share - Ambitic_;us growth plans. .
. - Attracting, retaining and incentivising

12 13 14 . 15 16 17 18 management,

- Increased market worth of
management given performance
track record.

- Workforce remuneration experience
and views,

- Focus on supporting wider workforce
during macro environment affecting
workforce-inflation, energy.

- Increasing importance of ESG
performance.

- Broader indicators of culture e.g.
colleague engagement (Engagerment
index 79%).

- Market developments in governance
practices, ensuring our governance
aligns with needs of stakehelders.

FY¥12-18 EPS ‘

The Group has doubled whilst improving operating margin

3. Market insight:
used to ‘sense check”:
FY19 revenue: FY22 revenue:

£544 7m £1,012.8m a) Information en UK pay levels for
: companies of similar size FTSE 150-100

{Diploma: FTSE 111, 30 September 2022).

b} There are few direct peers for Diploma.
Hence we use a range of companies
in similar markets or with similar
value-add business models to provide
a comparison (RS Group plc, Bunzl ple,
Inchcape plc, Spirax-5arco Engineering
ple, Rentokil Initial plc, Howden Joinery
Group Ple, Spectris ple, Halma ple, DS
Smith ple, Travis Perkins ple, Johnson
Matthey plc). Some within this list
are larger than Diplema but provide
useful insight.

c} Variable pay targets for FTSE 250.

Revenue growth
FY19-22

© Cortrols Seals 3 Life Sciences

e
Adjusted Operating Profit £97.2m
{operating margin 17.8%)

4. Shareholder consultation on proposed changeS'

- Extensive, direct shareholder consultation with ca. 65% of the register.
- Consultation with key proxy voting agencies.
- Conversations with shareholders shaped policy proposals including considerations of quantum and stretch in performance targets.




2022 Remuneration Policy proposals and rationale

Prrsior aignrreer sl iden veeak force

Improvinz the
Cirzactors’ compaor

TE{"Q”TW;] griaTg Doasiry

of leadsrshis

et of Lxecutive
portanity,
« and criticolity

e rao

PR ETA aRIPIAS]

wf by to 007 o

3loday 216930435

Sharerciner Sinrmrerd

Fetersicn of post emiployroent sharchodirg LTSIz 10 o

MSR 1o be held for two veors after termiration date.

Flasitsility to

includs LS5 metrics duning nex polioy period.

Proposed implementation of policy in FY23

Fixed
remuneration

Annual
bonus

Long-term
incentives

Shareholding
guideline

Post-cessation
guideline

Johnny Thomson
(CEO}

Base pay: £7/54,000
Henefits funad
Fension: £41,085
lequivalent to 4%
of base pay from

" Jan 235

Mok 125%: base pay
Target: 62.5% base

Py

Chris Davies’
{CFO)

Cihcnge from
201

Base pay: £450,000
Benetits fund
Fansicr: £18,000
feguivalent to 4%
of base pay)

Max: 125% base pay

[arget: &2
Py

Max: 300% base pay

PSP (20221 3007
tase poy
Ferfarmance pericd:
three yoors

Falding period: five
yeurs fror grant

Max: ZUOru_b_oseaj; ) Helding requirernent: Holding requirerment:

PSP {2022): 200%
biase pay
Performance pericd:
three years

Hoiding period: five
years frorm grant

Holding reguirerment:

300% base pay

Holding reqguirentent:

A%, of MSE for 2
vears atter the
termination dote

250% base pay

50% of the MSR “ar
2 years after the

lermumation aote

CEC base pay &%

inersase;

CED pension reduced;

New CFO appointed

No change

Policy maxirnum
increased Tor CEG &
CFO

PSF award increased
for CEO

New CFO appointed

Shareholding
guidgeline increased in
fine with nzw PSP
MNCXIM

I~creased post-
cessation quidaline
from 12 months 1o
2 years

t

121 Diplama PLC Anrual Repart 202
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REMUNERATION POLICY

Remuneration Polic

T T ek s .

LTE LT

vf

Executive Directors

Component Maximum opportunity Performance metrics

Base salary : . $ are oLy Toeo PREanIVE L

Pensions

Benefits e




Component Purpose and link to strategy Operation Maximum opportunity Performance metrics
Annual T - : S e PRIl - Tt e .
Performance

Bonus Plan

O

MPIAIBA

yloday nbayniyg

Performance
Share Plan
{PSP)
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REMUNERATION POLICY
CONTINUED

Chair and Non-Executive Directors

Component Purpose and link to strategy Operation Maximum opportunity Performance metrics

e e et e

i
Selection of performance measures and targets for Annual Benus and PSP
e dee g s R RO Tl i Tt SOITIC TTrUTEe T L oot X
o - 1t . . e
.- 1 Ve . 5 A

lustration of application of Policy
T Lt N - 2 A A

Johnny Thomson

FO Remuneration package

NG

e




Consideration of shareholder views

remuneration policy for other employees
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REMUNERATION POLICY
CONTINUED

Change of control

-

T 1. FCGatod
Compensation
poyable upon
Contract Unevpired Notice early
date torm pernod termination Malus and clawback
. NI RIS . Y ML Al Sty teal o ey
T : < T
3 Elor L7 = o - E 3 — k
Payment for loss -
T T s e s R - . - v
Lov - [ ‘1 " 1T Yo 1thy, [ - o
- i .. Lo Tt T )
Remuneration for new appointments
- - P I L BT S - s

- -t o o \




Employee and post-employment sharehelding requirernents

- e IS R

4
-
a
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[: 3
a
n
=
1)
b
o
"
Chair and Non-Executive Directors
Recruitment and term
* 17,
Cm ey 0
o
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REMUNERATION FPOLICY
CONTINUED

Provision 40 table

T
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

Executive Directors (audited)
Total remuneration in 2022 and 2021
larinny Thar-ssn Barbars Dibbes
2022 2021 2022 207 2022 2627 o
£000 €600 £000 1000 £000 £000 =
: m : 345 A 1,076 TR 5
' 25 19 - 44 44 g‘

15 S 86 RN
399 i 1,206 e
7 889 & 456 22y 1,345

75 =8 7 92 2

e 262 et 10 3n Pl
Ll r.r‘r»’— R T ATt T 2,662 iR 487 T 2’5"2_6—" : :
Total variable 2,951 Lads 923 - 3,874 LEnn
Single total figure 3,758 e 1,322 5 5,080 LA

yioday o)baioang

Departure of Barbara Gibbes and appointment of Chris Davies {gudited} a
T L T T T B T B T I ST . e e
- e L e e )
- Lo o
5 1 o
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o -t - 2
1]
=
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: R veroe Toolp CRD urn o Bt Dovertog v e ns 20U Dt os ot - R €
=]
3
Executive Directors’ base salary {unaudited) 3
Ten e g STt e T ttee nng e 30 ot FLoTen 3T N ) N ]
g g t 2
R Il T R o+
“©
Salary from
1 October
2022
£000 1icrease msalony
e T . 754 .

D ererer 10 450 -
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ANNUAL REFPORT ON REMUNERATION

CONTINUED

Pension {oudited)

2022 202:

Contribution Pension Contrioution Peryion

rate % of paid as cash rate % of poic as cash

base salary £000 Lase saiary £00C

B 10 7 he
Voo 4 15 o T4

Annual performance bonus (audited)
Bonus pay out for year ended 30 September 2022

.

Overall assessment against targets

LR b
SRR B Tt
= _, e e e o
Tree e e ” B
. . o

Bonus gwarded to each of the Executive Directors for year ended 30 September 2022

Boss salary 2022 actaa' bonus oo petcentage of 262 bace woio 2022 bonus

Financial
000 Minirurn Ori-torget Maxirmum objectives Total bonus £000

g ’ o 125% 125% 889
Sl ban= B B 125% 125% 456

Bonus awards for year ended 30 September 2023

1
i

L
1




Long-term incentive awards [audited}

Performance conditions
St [ L PUP P Le e ey et e i SeoLwit e DOITESE oL antTooAn

% of awards

Adrustec EPS growtr iover three yagrs! vesting

2 - -

Y T e R
% of owerds
westing
[P TIERS
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

Awards vesting in 2022 (gudited)

1r e

e T

EPS ot
30 Sep CAGR Maximnum vested
2027 im EPS oward award
109.4 “ 07 RS
Fe g TR R - ¢ - B e D Rt T TI,
T ity et VT e e s i
TSR growth against FTSE 250 (exciuding financial services and investment Trusts)
T5R at
30 Sep
- B 2022 Median Uppe: quortie Maximam cward vested award

200%p.a. P

B e L T Sy P

Lel ot meine o 13T . PANIVS I 1 o LG T e ’ - S e B A |
Share prce Shate Share
ot dote pre at Proportion Shares Performaornce copreziction
ot grant 30 Sep 2027 of award vested element element
pence pence vesting number L0000 L0060

z T " 100% 85,481 :
R 100% 19,374 IR LEC

[_)ividend equivalent payments (uuqlited)_ 7

Long-term incentive plan — awards granted in the year {audited)

. R o P I I J T S

Outstanding share-based performance awards (audited)




Diplorma PLC 2011 and 2020 Performance Share Plan (audited)

Shares Shares
Sharer over which over which
Fare va'ue of Cyves wrict awards awards
the aword ot End of swards helg granted Vested Lapsed held at
acote of grant priformance at 10t during during the during the 30 Sep
Lo00 period verting dote ) 20 theyear period period 2022
Johnny Thomsen
R - 85,48 - -
- - - 74,804
57,007 - - 57,007
- 19,374 - -
- - (8,601) 17,201
20,485 - (13, 656) 6,829

Hoday 21693008

Chair and Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration {audited) o
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2022 2021 e
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

Executive Directors’ interests (audited)
In options over shares

4 e

Vested Options
Year of Options a: ot Exercised during the  unexercised as Exercise  [uihest nerena
vasting T et 2021 n yeot year  at 30 Sep 2022 price* exercise date Expury dote

o R

- £l
85,481 £1

19,374  £1

As gt 30 Sep 2022

A 01 3C Seg 2027

Options with Dphions with
Ordinary  Optiens vested performance perfornence
shares but unexercised measures medsdres

e T T ' " 102,330 85,481 131,811
IR R 5,082 19,374 24,030 Gk - =

T T e T A Ry s - s
Chair and Non-Executive Directors’ interests in ordinary shares (audited) '
B T L A i+ S R L e U p gttee et nel s Sy s e T s g e s
- - [ . _ Irierestr ordingny ob ares .
. _ . S I ) N Asat305ep 2022 £: o130 Sep

- ' o T 2,500
oo 9,045
Lo e 7,545
5,045
et 2,045 R




Remuneration in context
Chief Executive poy ratio {unoudited)

25th prreentiis Medior 75tk percentile
P P

Methodg ot payrzta Pty fetis

Ratic of pase pay
to CEC base poy

-
Aligning pay with performance {unaudited)
) T T AT T LN Lt s e L e BT e e g R e o
, s T e Ly ~ T T L i P T
Growth in the value of a hypothetical £100 holding over ten years
900
750
=Ll
450
300
15C
o
3CSep 2012 3G Ser 203 305wy 2004 er L 5 Sep 2l 30600207 B Sep 2018 3 SepI0IS  305epICIU 30 Sep 2027 30 Sep 2672
== Diprama PLE e FTSE 250 excluzing Imvestmient Truss
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

Chief Executive Officer remuneration compared with annual growth in TSR (unaudited)

Actual share

CEC single Annuc benus award vesting

fig.ure ot 1atgl against ogainst Annuai

remuneration AU maximuT growth

Nome (£03G) opportunty apportun ty _inT5R
Johnny Thomson 3,758 100% 100%
BT € lal P
IR Uz _ -

P - f

M . -

EX o Sok
T . = - -5t
B T e
Brocs Ry .
Al - 1 L4y
Relative importance of Executive Director remuneration (unaudited)
2022 20N Chenge
£m £m
Tt Iyl e 177.5 L0

ERRICER I el A e 56.2 i oL

Percentage change in remuneration of Directors and employees (u

AT Aoor LT T oL . L o . LTI o RN L

naudited)

. AL \ B + - e - [T ' h e L
Base soiar vt hange S Pens onchange (Yol Taxzgic benehts Bonut chonge (%
2022 2020 2022 020 2022 2020 2022 2027 2020
vs 2021 vL 2020 v S vs 2021 ve 2019 vs 2021 vr, 2020 ve 2079 vs 2021 ve 2020 v 2079
Executive Directors
_ Me
I beow +3 - -18 +2 - charge +3 - - .
Nz _
+7 +7 oage - +2 - Cox +7 co
e
Texom Ty de n/a cronge
[
T — Y -69 tianae -
B HNe tin
= M +3 cronige chionge
Lo +6 - -
Te
R e +3 Thengs
«185 - -
Employees of the
Parent Company n/a sl g n/a Coe - n/a oL Co n/a 5
. ’ B ) No hes . B
Senior management team +7.5 . . +7.5 - -7 change chonge - +22 - -




senior management below the Board (unaudited}

. 4 + -

1

O

Shares over <

Sacre which Shares ]

Face vaue of e wRITE awards over which <

tMarket price the scword ot tnc 5 awaords held granted Vested Lapsed awards held o
atdateof oote of grant performance ot October during the during the during the at 30 Sep E3

award £000 penod 202" year year year 2022
S A ANV - 29546 4,460 -
’ ’ L - - 9,612 39,860

GOVERNANCE
Remuneration Committee

e LT TS
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

{unaudited)

LY T S

Other services
provided o the
Company Fees (£}

Shareholder voting ot

previous Annua! General Meeting (U
' od n o eharens

naudited)

o0 It

2021 Report

L




DIRECTORS" REPORT

Shareholders

[

Shareholders
Incerporation and principal ac

O

MOIAIBA

Tre o s S St e i - )
et . L TT TR T

RIS L S R B el : .

e ezttt e S S LN

Contracts of significance and change of control

[ s a el o et S AN I

Annual General Meeting Restrictions on transfer of shares
Tt P e LT - T T 1 R S SR R
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
CONTINUED

Disclosures required under Listing Rule 9.8.4C

e B [ Len .y

Directors’ assessment of going concern

e 1 "

N “ rer oLt mTng -
Non-financial information -

07156

ArtAN -

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements
“he .

Non-finhancial information statement

)

B T T

Financial
Results and dividends

sep e s e e - oy

independent Auditors
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FCR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

2022

oty £m

Revenue ’ ) iR 1,012.8
Tt ¢ o | (638.3)

Gross pfof"if - R 374.5
oot et {25.9)
At (204.3)

Operating profit : 144.3
- (14.8)

Profit before tax 129.5 ces
TIe L ALeITiG - (34.1) e

Profit for the year 95.4 s

sor S e Do, 94.7 B
B e B o S o ,\._ 0.7 t-

e S 5.4 -

Earnings per share
S e e < 76.1p
Lobeneen - 75.9p

ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES'

2022 2691
Note £m £

EETIRS: S S ' ) 144.3 R
I R I ST LT DIt el oLode o apae oot s . 46.9 4304
Ad]usted operating prb‘?& - ) 7 ST T2 e
R IO R T AL v ) (11.6) . =
Kc_i-jus-té-d profit before tax S T 9.

Adjusted earnings per share E 107.5p Lo




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

2022 260
Note £m Lrr,
F’rof%-t -fOl' thei;ie? - B - T T 25.4 . -
Iterns that wili not be reclassified to the Consolidated Income Statement - - o
LomaT i S0 0T e R 4 10.6 =
- T =" 1

7.8

(2.8 =

76.8
4.5
(0.4)

' 79.8

E L1

87.6 -
S 183.0 5
R s 182.2

0.8

183.0

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

Share Srare Trarstation Hedging Retoines Shareholders’ Mooty Total

copita premium rESErve TESETVE earrungs equity Interese equity

Note £ im £m £ Lrr fm im im

At 1October 2020 Tha JEI NS R 527.0 530.7
T R A o T 60.8 60.5
b £ - = 1.8 1.8

e _ - S (0.5}

:::'_:;‘i* I - - - - {0.9)

S ; e (52.9)

1.0
{0.5)

(0.9)
0.7
{53.2)

At 30 September 2021 ol Lot it - Toer 536.3
Tee Do e - P 182.2
2.8

SRR : o 0.4
e : - - e (2.8)

- & (1.9

el (56.2)

541.0

T 183.0

2.8

0.4
(2.8}
2.5
1.3}

(1.9)

1.2
(0.3)
(56.4)

At 30 September 2022 63  188.6  88.8 3.2 375.1 662.0

6.2

668.2
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Lk -

RO OSERCFMEER 20

2022 2
MNaote £m Lrr

Non-cutrent assets

< 372.3 g

ALGuinisan i TAr G (0 St W) 455 .0 244 G
10 4.1 4

Fropetty ot 0 e er i 49.6 354

ceases ot ot pee aesets 12 62.4 44 G

raels Z4 & 4

Crtrenim s

I

Retirgrent nen

Defaie d s owet

Current assets

e I FaldTot) 4 217.4 139§

other rece vatles 5 1469.9 " e
&

cerator e e

Current hiebilities
Bie oo e w5 (30.5) JLe

or G 3

" o “ (189.5) e
‘ s s (11.8) ace
{oreer Lok res 1o “9.0, T
TS E LN FEH -5

(12.7) S
(263.5) ;
Net current assets 165.5
Totafl assets less current liabilities 1,1-15.%

Non-current liobilities

Retrere st tenes Ll hont o 4 -
P {340.1)

. 17 (56.4)

g {12.4)

Crtbier e

[eferrern wa. alit s 13 {38.4)
Netassels __ _ _ . B 4682

Equity
S o T 4.3 [

g e 188.6 g

Retoimed oo 37541
Total shareholders’ equity 662.0 Bl
FAVar Ty rorosts 20 6.2 4

Tn ot

‘fotciequityﬁﬁw - B 668.2
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

2022

HNote £m

Operating profit S - 1443 -

LoBlmTIr e 3ed s ot e 46.9 22t

18.1 S5

: SGomns {28.7) e
Cash flow from o;;ercting activities T - 180.6 i
T T T B S S (15.0)
Toenad {40.6)
Net cash from operating activities 125.0

SO

Cash flow from investing activities
. ‘ oo (173.0)
: (7.1}

R R O i 13.7
S ” (14.3)
T = oo (1.1}
VTSl L ] [ AU Sl DL R Code e B 9.9

< [

Net cash used in investing activities - (171.9}

Cash flow from financing activities

-. _ , o _ b e - {56.2)
I . g e - (0.2)

T A,

y1oday a16ainaig

Tt T e . (0.3)

Celt D IIe T AT STIIET LU LIt Tt (2.8) R4
THmeRTIt T AT oI 154.8 BT
R N B o R e 1 o {20.0) o
“ ST e e o et (10.9) =0

Bgé;h from ﬁnunE}r;goctivities 7 ) o ) 64.4 7
Net increase/{decrease} in cash and cash equivalents 17.5 L
. i Lot e ety 24.8 oo

23UDUIBAOC) 83040d107)

[

o e

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year - 4.7 L

ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES'

2022 202
Note £m £rn

Free cash fiow . 120.4 TIE R
F o e H o 1339 1.z

Free cash fiow conversion % - 0% ey
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

1. General information

e .

2. Business Sector analysis

At




Lfe Sciences Sezic Caonitrale Corpuraie e

2022 2021 2022 20m1 2022 o 2022 26 2022 sz
£m im £m L £m irm £m };m £m £m

T 178.0 5°: 2944 . oF 4819 - 9543 =
ol TIDLoITIl LX) 370 . we - o 585 -
Revenue 188.6 R L 331.4 P 492.8 LR 7 - 1,012.8 o

PN ’ 39.7 A 57.0 ae F 104.0 2 (18.2) T 182.5 s g
L R A e g
T 1.3 . 56 18 - - 8.7 z

Adjusted operating profit 0.0 23 62.6 Zrs 105.8 i< (18.2) T 191.2 i

e B P s Sl b B

mamen 15 AL (16.8) =7 {30.5) =T (L) 7 o {469y L
Operating profit 42.5 SEE 45.0 Ri 75.3 <Lz (19.5) L 144.3 LT

e

St et 74.0 L 207.5 ETARA 211.5 Todn - - 493.0 R
RS 106.2 ol 125.2 S 140.9 e - - 372.3 o

TR R S L & O e Rty 749 < 100.2 4 279.9 L - 455.0 AL
- - 255.1 Tha 4329 Cco: 6323 o< - | 13203 o

Tt et e 0.2 o 0.2 e
B A UL T 41.7 o 41.7 i
T N 1.8 1.8
SOt s e 6.4 - 6.4
8.6 R 8.6

yioday o1ba3payg

Total assets 2550 : 4329 e 587« | 13190  io BN
rerotimoar (41.7) I (03.3) or - (237.6) : ﬁ
S P A §
TR ] o . . o
o {38.4) (38.4) 2
EEREC Tt T - - - - b
- " <
R (31.4) T (31.4) i 5
I A (32.8) LI {32.8) B e
B I 30y ] (370.8) Lt 8
Tc_)_tcui_gbil_i;t_i_es (#.7) 0. (103.3) TR (92.8) e (473.2) = ) __(_7_1(&__

Net assets T 2134 ale 3296 5307 -0 (4145 .- 568.2

=i = Jee e o ?
- I . - . - i -
1 hs — = - i — — - —
gt R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 50 SEPTEMBER 2022

3. Geographic segment analysis by origin

Ldjusted cperotrg Trading cao tal
B Revenue o __proﬁtﬁi - . Nura:;c;"er'.:a::xct: o err};\rcyed Capta e;pgrwdwtu-e
2022 2021 022 2071 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
tm i £m v gm im __gm  io gm im_
Citenvomaaees 2007 TS AL f 1936 S 2022 . 34
Sttt 166.7 Gl D 29.3 R 169.1 e T 179.8 Tl t 1.7 e
Tarete Lo 561.0 40k 129.5 -5 519.2 LL0 614.2 Lol 8.9 47
z N 75.4 Lo 11.4 ‘ 573 40 62.3 T 1.3 LE
T 40128 sts 1912 s 9390 .=~ 1,0585 .- 153 .
4. Group employee costs
Average number of employees
2022
AR B - - - - 423 )
1,174 !
T 981 o7
I L - N 36 ) :
Number c;'éir;ployee_s_tg:e'rdge““ o ’ o T _2_,Z1_4
Number of employees - year end 2,909 P
Group employee costs, including key management
2022 20N
£m i
SNITT T 154.8 s
Dot 13.3
[ : 6.6
- 2.8 B
177.5 T
Key management short-term remuneration, including Directors .
"o o
AT L L A VU S R B (N 5.0
L : D e 0.4
S 0.2
e Cro - 2.4 -
8.0
Directors’ short-term remuneration
2022 ZL2%
£m Lem
- To- 0.5 =
- - 2.6 _
31




5. Financial expense, net

interest {expense)/incorme and similar charges

Q

<

®

-

<.

= 1]

3

2

-

4. Tax expense -4
2022 0 (1.4

£m | Qa,

a

Current tax g
T Fame - 4 + — - = o
. G g

e

! s L

. 0

¥ B ¥ 9‘
Lot . "é
Total current tax a
Deferred tax ;
CoLet et 2 it D L 2
o

P S B 3
2
Douui L 3
Total deferred tax o

Total tax on profit for ﬂ'\;yé;r

Factors a

PO -

b 1 LI h - ST

#fecting the tax charge for the year

$31U3WaID3S |DIDUDUlY

-+ ST T T = - C e -
fore tax o
I L = -+
= ¥
®
=
3
-
o
=
3
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Total tax on profit for the year




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FCR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

2022
pence per share

- —j‘vr,‘:i—"w{] S TR
Feon dhadena e o sar o s Daine o, 3041

45.1

15.0

202

pence paer snare

8. Earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per share

T
Adjusted earnings per share
LTI T ORI A LTI B £
2022 20 2022 202t
. o o o - - - _ pence pelrs!wre L pnL pedsnare - 5_11 im
Profit before tax 129.5 -t
Tavenanie {34.1) s
R I R T (0.7}
Earnings for the yeor attributable to shareholders of the Company 76.1 - 94.7 =
o TR RO ST R S Tl B A T A AT S LS SV L A T
[ 3.4 N 39.2
Adjusted earnings 107.5 133.9
9. Goodwill
Lie Stiences Seos Total
£ £m

ST tegem e D00 o - - Ti59.0
cz ne 7 117.6

) (3.8}

- < (4.7)

- B (7.4}

T T - - e w2607

s " 81.0

s Eite BTl < - - iz 30.6
At 30 September 2022 Sl 20 372.3




irade Totol
T ocquisition Other
Custy-mes Suppler trands 30d intangible intangible
re.ct-onsnips raictionshipe sotochaoser assets assets
i~ frm e £m £fm
Cost
S T - 183.2 7.6
nT T - 1.4
L < - 306.8 0.2
: (3.6) (0.9)

. - s (6.9) (0.4)
- c e - {16.8) {0.3)
e e LI - . 4827 7.6
- - 1.0
- - 99.9 0.8
o - (1.1
R RS . 69.9 1.0
At 30 September 2022 547.9 30.9 53.7 632.5 8.3
Amortisation B - o - -
S N N . 96.0 4.6
L - - - 18.7 -
i 14.4 0.7
Lo (3.6) (0.7)
3 i (5.4) (0.1
. oo (2.3) (0.3)
- o e : nz.8 42
- : = 4.0 -

: - 38.4 0.8

JeF - {0.4}
R - 17.3 0.6
At 30 September 2022 - 140.1 24.6 128 177.5 52
Net book value - N )
At 30 September 2022 407.8 6.3 40.9 455.0 4.1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

e i : [T
- o o RS - el e
T T 3%R% Sty O DL DT FroeGTe et - s 2D Tratey Hanie oo Toanag ! B T
1. Property, plant and equipment
Freehaold Legsehale Plant ana Hasontol feig
properties properties eguaprient equipment Tetal
Errs £ im £ £m

St 3ot s - . 1.3

At 30 September 2022 36 B2 2 w7 977
Depreciation

T T £z I ST Ll 35.4

PO R A RS R o - i z 7.4
At 30 September 2022 - 1 52 37 1 483

Net book value
At 30 September 2022 2.5 8.0 285 10.6 49.6

s e z o
: - _Ta sl
B




12. Leases - right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
Right-of-use assets

Total
£m

38.9
26.9
(2.6)
(0.9)
(0.7}

S T R

Lang & Pioni & Motor T orhee
burdings machineny wehig les equipmoe
Fiaed fm £ £
4T g 3T L
<y : H
-
[ i
-] SD
= g
o~ -

1.6

25.4

(2.0}
6.9

At 30 September 2022 81.1 0.8 8.3 1.7 91.9
Depreciation

S O s E B 7.3

Nt o : 10.8

N {0.8)

o4 {0.5)

. - (0.1)

o N ) o ST 16.7

e 2 LT = 4 12.7

8 el 5 1.3)

e e LT C 4 _ 1.4

At 30 September 2022
Net book value

At 30 September 2022

D Depte y e 2T £ - Lt -
ST ] h B Toe ¥ . L
B 2022 203
-~ B o frm o frr7
48.3
26.6 _
{0.9) o
{13.5) :
2.6 8
RS S U T 8 6.0_ L o
At 30 September 69.1 L
£m i
_ AN
56.4 =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 20 SEPTEMBER 2022

CONTINUED

13. Deferred tax

T e 2022 20
im frr
T - - ) (21.9} o
te 6.6 N
St e - - (17.6)
- oy : (3.9)
RS RE IR R e (1.4) . <
At 30 September T T - (38.2) G
T i =e toot o gttt Lt e thiz 1L
Losets o Vl.wobw'ne‘s. 777777 o Net o
2022 2021 2022 2071 2022 200
£rn i im L £m £
t 0.1 - (5.8) S E {5.7) T4
- (42.0) i (42.0) :
- (1.0) (1.0) :
3.1 c {0.7) 3.0 :
1.4 - 1.4
1.2 B - .
5.1 (0.2) ‘
o I 108 a9y ;
et 10.7) 107
T O_i T (38.4) e
2022 202t
£m o fer
© s S - T 217.4 sl
2022 2021
£m £
ao ein ot 158.9 RN
Ll o (7_2, ‘
T S T S 517 E
- . 9.8 I
e et 8.4 B
169.9 =
Assets held for sale




2022
fm

S dn e 7041
Covoazor d0oo 12.6

18.0
e 16.9
S T 1589

-

2022
£fm

T P .;)J:" o o V 124.9

Tyl 256.8 £z
S e e rTr Rl 7.2 I
158.9 .

2022
£m

J AT S :":.'R 7 N V N o R 20.7

4.5 “
1.6 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

17. Cash and cash equivalents

2022 2021
UK uss cs5 Euro Other Total Other
£m £m £m £m Em  fm im
15.2 71 2,3 7.8 6.4 38.8 TE
st - 63 18 - 10 29 [
15.2 7.2 4.1 7.8 7.4 41.7 e
T ot s S HT R e ‘ 8 aTe TeeZin - AL

18. Financial instruments

ey

) i

t risk

.

a) Credi

=7




b} Liquidity risk
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2022 20
fm £

T Tt e 95.4 R
25.8
IS 35.0 .
- : 370.6 oL

) o S 527.8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

12.6 oL
12.9 o
5.4

d} interest rate risk

R T TN .
R S L

Trade and other receivables/payables

e e el s T P R R T L I B R
Borrawings
T Foe 2Lk Cte . T el T oo

cher liabitities

f) Capital management risk




2022 2021
£m Em

7.4 ol
24.0 s
31.4 T

19.0 e
12.4 Tl

2022 20
£rn7 ) im

5.2 Z
1.9 o
(1.2)

0.1 .

7.4 oo

w
fag
4
a
~+
-3
@,
3]
=
;]
o
@
-

Fareigr.
1 Oct 2021 soditens Discount unwing Revsluzton Payments Erchaonge 30 Sep 2022
m

22UDUSIACG) 91DI0dI0T)

£ £rmi Lo £ L im
- -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

20. Minority interests

AT e ent T

R i o NS

o

At 30 SeE)tember 2022 B

- - o e EX - e
e = T s
T TLeT

21. Acquisitions and disposals of businesses
Acquisition of R&G Fluid Power Group Limited

e SR poteerthe oy et ot

N st = 3 -
e t - = fe _
Acquisition of Accuscience
S MAL LT e e m e s ‘e
a- - e
r e < .
1 s w o iwieesceiine wed ot L
e o 0
— Zos o
- . e e




REG Accusc.ence AV IPN Total

Eogh vaiue Faur value Book value o vaiae Book va ue Yar value Bock value Fair value

I L T R S b _Em Em

L D W . M - 98.2
' e oL 2w (0.7) (18.5)
e R v s T - N 6.7 6.7
I e e 3 <1 “ : 28.2 26.1

oz s s = B 22.7 22.3

-3 — - T e - {28.9) (29.7)

14.6 49.1 3.0 31.0 10.4 25.0  28.0 1051

= oz - = -l - 80.6
- s - - (2.5)
. = oo 178.3
Lz e S . (6.1)
2. T T 1722

= < 11.0

34.2

Acquisitions revenue a

TN

nd adjusted operating profit

[N S LTI

Pro fomme

DOperatng

Reversue Ad). revenue oroht L4,
Acquiston date I £m im £ frr
: e ‘2 R : o
SR 4 14l 408 Lol = = -
— - - o - A1
N - - == -
58.5 65.8 124.3 8.7 10.9 19.6
ST - - - = !
1 . o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

22. Reconciliation of operating profit to cash flow from operating activities
2022 2022 2011 20

U VS _ Ao 0 i
Operating profit 144.3 =
R D an 446.9 4

Eﬁ]u ste o;)_erd_‘tihé

239 2.
: 2.8 s
T escenr of et (0.6) 55
(1.6) e
" meen o {6.5) 47,
Dtmen T tasn e ) LA oA

e 181

209.3

ﬁan—cashﬁems and oth&i 7~ o ) L
Operating cash flow before changes in working capital
S (35.6)

i e

e n R N Ea s (10.6) el
eI ot I TTTO T Teniaes 17.5 T
increase in working capitai {28.7) -

Cash flow from operating activities 180.6 A

23. {Net debt)/cash funds

T Sl L T O O TR LIRS LIt -
Exchange  Other ren-cosh
1Oet 2021 Cush fow maovemernts Movements 30 Sep 2022
Em £ im e £m
Z = T 41.7
CETR T o (370.6)
Net debt ST o {328.9)
fxchange  Othet non-cosh
10¢1 2020 Zaoh Pow Movements Movi-merts 3G Sep 2N
o B ~ o ~ o im im £ 7 ire
- o E 7 P s .




24, Retire

ment benefit asset and obligat

0

MIHAIBA

2022 2021

il TS oz

Pension scheme net {asset) / deficit
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

a) Pension surpius / (deficit) included in the Consolidated Staternent of Financial Pesition

20.7

“r

A‘
F
bt
L e

0

7.3

i

i)

Ie B

Trosont e ot S men e eabtes o - S (25.5) 4
Pension scheme net asset / {deficit) 6.4 2
" M LaL CNFTDT Tt O et mooe ath

' yer It I . w— e Co_h

Armounts cha r'g?erd to the Consolidated Inco_r;érsitcteme-ﬁt“ ' -

£m Im

¢} Amounts recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

RN B

1Moo

L L I B o
Actuarial gain credited in the Consoclidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 8.5

2022

202

£m im
2.7 "
(0.6) s
et et g Lomrriar e O v e et 373 1D T (8.5) S
(Asset) / deficit as at 30 September (6.4) L
e) Analysis of movements in the present value of the Scheme liabilities
2022 252
£fm £m
. 41.0 L7
Frracase meocen mTAT 0 Do Lot A 0.7 -
AT 0.8 -
T e e e e L L (15.7}) oz
merootn . S o ) I
At 30 September 25.5 ;




f} Analysis of movements in the present value of the Scheme assets

e LU o T 0.6
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 20272
CONTINUED
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Effect of the Kubo Scheme on the Group's future cash flows
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

27.3 Adjusted earnings per share
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GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

1.1
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GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED
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GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

CONTINUED
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1.21.2 Goodwill impairment (estimate}

1.19 Related parties
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PANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

a) Accounting policies
a.1) Basis of accounting
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

CONTINUED

d) Investments
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DIPLOMA PLC

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DIPLOMA PLC

CONTINUED

Our audit approach

Overview

The scope of our audit
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DIPLOMA PLC

CONTINUED
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he audit scope
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Conclusions relating to going concern

1 toT
- S0 T - T Tras
~ =T T

1 T
1
EERPY flE e

- 1o . - 1 = I - et et R i - b - — S - ' -
eporting on other information
CEITTL e rIetepen e s mecpron St oy - . S [
2 . T - N B
oot Ptk chorret oo Dant R SRR SR LA sThes T s . - Dol St
s’ Report
Tt a1y s - - 1= = o + -
R B ~ TR “ - = = ot
Directors’ Remuneration

yoday s16a1payg

O
=]
=
-
o
=
=]
~+
1]
[
o
<
®
=]
3
o
=
n
®

SIUIWAIN1S |DIDUDUI

UOIIOWLIO| JOYI0)




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DIPLOMA PLC

CONTINUED
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Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DIPLOMA PLC

CONTINUED

OTHER REQUIRED REPORTING
Companles Act 2006 exceptlon reportlng

oo

- LA J dr s e [t i
1 RN Iy R 1 e {
Sy
Appomtment
e ooy trernaatics of 4 Mo 20T

ad ot L te e

Christopher Burns {Senior Statutory Auditor)
for ond on behalf of PrlcewcterhouseCoopers LLP
TaTterDo Davtarte T aAieie s Lunt o
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SUBSIDIARIES OF DIPLOMA PLC

CONTINUED
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR AND SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Announcements (provisional dates) Shareholders’ enquiries
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ADVISORS

Corporate Stockbrokers

Solicitors
Simmons & Simmons LLP

O

MBIALIA

y1oday o1ba3payg

83UDuJaA0g aipiodion

ny
3
o
3
(2]
o,
=
w
Pag
a
+
3
1]
3
Frd
“n

UOIIDWIG4U] 13U




FIVE YEAR RECORD
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